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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

lv‘i- :

| am pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of ITC
Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Group reported a profit
of HK$214 million attributable to shareholders (2012: HK$434
million). Basic earnings per share was HK27.12 cents compared
with HK55.90 cents of last year. The Group continued to benefit
from its strategic investments in listed companies. Contribution
from associates enjoyed a year-on-year increase of 123% to
HK$257 million over last year's HK$115 million mainly attributable
to the increase in results of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC
Properties”). Despite more contribution from the associates,
profit for the year decreased because last year results included
a significant non-recurring gain of HK$318 million arising mainly
from the increase in inferests in ITC Properties and Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited ("Rosedale”).

AAMRARBRIELEFECEEBERAA] (T4
RADREMBAR ((AEEDBE_T—=
F=ZA=ZT—HILEFEZFR-

E3 40
By 7% 7 5 B

BE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—HILFE  KEBE
15 A% B8 FE 165 3% F11214,000,00058 7T (—ZF — — 4 -
434,000,000/ 70) © FRREREF) AH27.1281(L
EF R B55908l - AEBEESTERNE £
NAIZREUEREEE - BE R 2EMAESF
115,000,000/% JT i F 3 j1123% 2 257,000,000/
T EEAREEMEEEABR AR ([1EEH
EDZEELA BEBEAMELEZER/
TEERFRL  EXZERAAEFEEBE—
SXBREAEEHENRIABELEERER QR
([FARE)) RSN E £ 2 REIELF WS
318,000,000/% JT, °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

Analysis of the Group’s performance is as follows: REBRBZHOMWOT :
2013 2012
—E—= —E—=
HKS'M HKS'M
BEET B AT
Share of results of associates: BHhE R A RS
ITC Properties R E 234 77
PYI REE 70 84
Rosedale nE (43) (38)
Burcon Burcon 4) (8)
257 115
Net (loss) gain from changes in inferests ~ REfZ A BESEE 2
in associates (E518) W 558 3) 318
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz W - 28
Net loss from other investments and REEMIEE R EER
operations ZEEFEE (40) @7
Profit attributable to shareholders P& 3R P A V4 ) 214 434
LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS EFhTXRBEREEB

ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”)

ITC Properties is principally engaged in property development
and investment in Macau, Mainland China and Hong Kong. ITC
Properties is also engaged in golf resort and leisure operations in
Mainland China, securities investments and the provision of loan
financing services.

During the year, the Group converted the convertible notes of
ITC Properties ("ITCP Notes") with a principal amount of HK$26.5
million into approximately 12 million shares at the conversion
price of HK$2.20 per share and also acquired certain ITCP Notes
in a principal amount of HK$10.5 million. The total principal
amount of the ITCP Notes held by the Group as at 31st March,
2013 was HK$54.4 million. After the aforesaid conversion of ITCP
Notes by the Group and the conversions of ITCP Notes and
exercises of share options by other parties, the Group’s interest
in ITC Properties decreased slightly from 37.9% to 37.3% as at 31st
March, 2013 as a result of which a net loss of HK$10 million was
recognised for the year.
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FERNMRERR - BHBENNPE AL E
SRARREBRNIEREY  BHREMEHE
B E R -

RER  AEBEBEBRRESR2 208 TERAS
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AN—E—ZF A=+ BFEEEHEEE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

ITC Properties recorded a profit of HK$580 million attributable
to its shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2013 which
represents an increase of 258% as compared with HK$162 million
last year. Such increase was mainly attributable to substantial
gain recognised on disposal of ifs partfial interest in Sun Valley
Golf Resort in Sanya, Mainland China and share of gain on
disposal of a parcel of land in Macau by one of its associates.
As a result, the Group shared a profit of HK$234 million from ITC
Properties for the year under review.

PYI Corporation Limited ("PYI”)

Based in Hong Kong. PYI focuses on ports and infrastructure
development and investment, and the operation of ports and
logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of Mainland
China. It also engages in land and property development
and investment in association with ports and infrastructure
development. In addition, PYl provides comprehensive
engineering and property-related services through its direct and
indirect interests in Paul Y. Engineering (BVI) Limited ("PYE BVI").

The Group'’s interests in PYl increased slightly from 26.6% to 26.8%
as at 31st March, 2013 when the Group acquired approximately
13 million shares at the total consideration of HK$2.3 million on
the open market during the year and a gain of HK$11 million was
recognised accordingly.

In November 2012, PYl and Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
("PYE"), now known as Louis Xlll Holdings Limited ("Louis XIII")
jointly announced that PYE entered into certain agreements
to pursue certain transactions including (i) acquisition of an
exclusive power of attorney over a land situated on the Cotai
Strip in Macau for development of a 5-star hotel with ancillary
retail and entertainment facilities; (ii) placing and contingent
placing of shares and convertible bonds; (iii) distribution in
specie of a 49% interest in PYE BVI with a cash alternative;
and (iv) special cash dividend of HK$0.26 per share with scrip
alternative. Upon completion of the acquisition and the placing
of new shares and convertible bonds in February 2013, PYI's
interest in Louis Xlll was diluted from 61.9% to 10.6% (which was
further reduced to 9.9% in March 2013) and was entitled to 30.3%
interest in PYE BVI under the distribution in specie. The placing
of new shares constituted a deemed disposal of subsidiaries by
PYl and the aforesaid tfransactions resulted in a gain of HK$170
million for PYl. Upon completion of the distribution in specie with
the cash alternative in March 2013, PYI further acquired 17.2%
interest in PYE BVI under the cash alternative.

EEMERNEE_TE—=—F-A=+—HLHF
J& $515 H BY SR FE 16 74 F1/580,000,000/8 70 © B EF
162,000,000/ 7T 38 11258% * B IE K £ ZE H K
HEHPR R RN =S4 AS B RTE REL
R EEEERERE B EE—EREA
AR — 8 2 RS - Bt - AEERE
B8 F [ 8 5 12 4 Hb B2 42 71)234,000,0007 7T ©

REZFBERL A ([RE])

REAFBREN - ZFRFBEAMRIREE
AEMERZERRIEZE - WRBOTYRRE
ZEB O NMREEBORERERLEMAEAD
THMFEEMERIREED - WiRBENPaul Y.
Engineering (BVI) Limited ([PYE BVI])) Z E# &
MEED  REXENIRERDEREORS -

RER - RNEERRQFAMISIEEBRE2300,000/%8
JT f& B #713,000,0000% f% 1 1% + 58 MR 2E 2 1
mE26.6% BN E T —=F = =+—H
226.8% » W HEFR UL 511,000,000 7T °

RZE—ZF+—A RERREZESES
BAal ([REZXE] GABES T =—5SEBRA
AUBS+=ZD)BARH REZEIIVET
BEAETETRS 81 OWEB AR
KeNREZ L2 BRAEE  UBER—H
MR ZTERRERERE 2 AELBE ()
ENRSIARERD KA BRKES  (IDVEWDIE
PYE BVIZ49% =  E R & B RER  M(v)IK
BEERR0.26B T 2 KRR S R EBERARNK EIE
B -NRZE—=F-AZKKEEHEERE R
MEABBRESE RENKS - 2#%=H
61.9%#EE10.6% (M_E—=ZF=ZAE— PR
LEG9%) + WIRIEE Y5 K APYE BVI#E E30.3%
2  BREMRMOBRREWRIED S EN B
NAE - Bl R S RESER1S170,000,00008 7T %
Fle RZE—=F=-AZTKEDH RERRSH
Ri& - REE —FSREBRESBERBEEPYE BVIZ
17 2%KE 2 ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

In April 2013, the name of PYE was changed to Louis XlIl Holdings
Limited. It will develop a parcel of land situated on the Cotai
Strip, Macau on which it proposes to build and manage an
eminently exclusive hotel and entertainment destination called
“Louis XIII”. This project is the first of a series of ultra luxurious
lifestyle experiences that Louis Xlll is planning to offer the world’s
wealthiest. Louis Xlll is also engaged in international engineering
services spanning Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and the
international market through its subsidiary, PYE BVI. In June 2013,
PYE BVI changed its name to Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.

PYI recorded a profit atftributable to its shareholders of HK$262
million for the year ended 31st March, 2013. The decrease
in profit for the year as compared to HK$334 million last year
was mainly attributable to the decrease in net gain from
deemed disposal/disposal of subsidiaries. As a result, the profit
contributed by PYl decreased from HK$84 million to HKS$70
million.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited ("Rosedale”)

Rosedale is principally engaged in the hotel investments and
management in Mainland China and Hong Kong and also
tfrading of securities. Rosedale’s hotel operations comprised the
four "Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels, namely Rosedale
Hotel Kowloon, Rosedale on the Park, Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Beijing, Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Guangzhou, the Times Plaza
Hotel, Shenyang and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel.

The Group's interest in Rosedale remained at 29.7% throughout
the year. Rosedale recorded a loss of HK$143 million attributable
to its shareholders for the year ended 31st December, 2012
as compared with HK$207 million last year. The business hotel
network of Rosedale was further comprehended following
the soft opening of the Rosedale Hotel Kowloon in July 2012.
Operating margin was improved subsequent to the surrender
and disposal of certain under-performed budget hotel leases
during the year. Accordingly, the Group shared a loss of HK$43
million for the current year.

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ("Burcon”)

Burcon is a leader in nutrition, health and wellness in the field of
functional, renewable plant proteins. Its shares are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Market and the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange. Since 1999, Burcon has developed
a portfolio of composition, application, and process patents
originating from its core protein extraction and purification
technology. Burcon has developed CLARISOY™ soy protein, the
only vegetable-based protein that offers clarity and complete
protein nutrition for low pH beverage systems; Peazazz® a
uniquely soluble and clean-tasting pea protein isolate; and
Puratein®, Supertein™ and Nutratein® canola protein isolates with
unique functional and nuftritional aftributes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Burcon’s flagship protein technology, CLARISOY™, has been
licensed to Archer-Daniels-Midland Company (*ADM"), a leader
in the global food ingredient industry listed in the U.S., since
March 2011. In June 2012, Burcon announced that ADM had
opened its first commercial-scale plant to make CLARISOY™ soy
protein available for customers looking to purchase commercial-
scale quantities. In October 2012, ADM earned the Best
Beverage Ingredient Concept prize for CLARISOY™ 150, the first
extension to the CLARISOY™ product line, at the 2012 InterBev
Awards ceremony in Las Vegas. In December 2012, ADM notified
Burcon of the first commercial sale of CLARISOY™ soy protein
produced by ADM.

In January 2013, Burcon provided notice to terminate the letter
of intent for commercialising Peazazz® announced in August
2012 to the other party. Burcon also reported in January 2013
that it had commenced building a commercial-scale plant
to produce Peazazz® and market development quantities are
expected to be available for customers by about July 2013.

In November 2012, Burcon issued approximately 1.4 million
common shares at a price of 4.0 Canadian dollars per share
of which the Group has subscribed for 300,000 shares. The
net proceeds will be used for continued commercialization
of Peazazz® pea protein and CLARISOY™ soy protein and for
general working capital purposes. The Group’s inferest in Burcon
decreased from 21.0% to 20.8% during the year due to exercise
of share options by other parties. The loss shared by the Group
during the year was HKS$4 million.

(CLARISOY™ js under license to Burcon from ADM)
(CLARISOY™ js a trademark of ADM)

E-_Z——9F=H# Burcon® #Archer-
Daniels-Midland Company (R 3JEBE L I %
PHRAMIEERNEBEEMU 2 AF) U THE
[ADM ) {8 FA E 8 A8 25 O & FITCLARISOY™ © A
ZZE—ZF /XA BurconAHADMC. R HE &
EMEFERE TAEEEAEREZERFPM
HECLARISOYM A S EABE ZME - R —=
F 4 A + ADMPA A7 H 4 hnHT 2817 22012 InterBev
AwardsfB 22 E | - JRECLARISOYM £ E R H
{E 4 {72 78 B CLARISOY™ 15055 % 5 15 1R AR 17 18
S N -ZT——FE+=F » ADMBEXBurcongt
HAE ZCLARISOYM K G B H B 1T B N %8
= o

RZE—=F—F ' BurconAl 5 — F # @MLK
ER=ZF—=—F N\ AE M hPeczazz®E 1T H H T
B2 BRE cBurcon TR ZE—=F —AREH
B s EE BRI 2 R 4 EPeazazz® + T8
AR AN E—=FtAREFREMSEHRE
HEHE -

MNZZT——F+—HA - BurconAFR4.0007T 27T
#91,400,0008% & @ A% - i 4~ & [E B 52 #$300,000
f& A% 17 o AT1S FRIEF 5818 B 1E 4 4B T Peazazz®%t
THBEAY RCLARISOYM AEEAE & F 1
EMERE—REELESHE BAREMAL
RERITEERRE  ANEEPBurconZ # % H
21.0%% 2> 2£20.8% c A& BN F AN#E(hHEIE
4,000,000/ 7T °

(BurconZ CLARISOY™,Z 5 ZF 1# B IEADM#F &)
(CLARISOY™BADM.Z B 1Z)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

The Group’s effective shareholding interests in the maijor listed
strategic investments are summarised below:

AEEREE FHEIEMIREEE 2 B
BT

Effective interest

Notfe: The Group's effective interest is held through ITC Properties
and PYI.

As at As at the
Name of 31st March, date of this
investee company Place of listing Stock code 2013 report
BERER
FrRERT R-Z—=%F RAEKEH
ZEW L E IR R =A=+-—H =p:]
ITC Properties Hong Kong Stock Exchange 199 37.7% 33.2%
fErE i E & BB A P
PYI Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 26.8% 26.8%
REE & BB A P
Rosedale Hong Kong Stock Exchange 1189 29.7% 29.7%
e & BB A P
Burcon Toronto Stock Exchange BU 20.8% 20.8%
EMEERRHHM
NASDAQ Global Market BUR
MHTER 25
Frankfurt Stock Exchange WKN 157793
ERRREFR M
Louis XIlI Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577 6.9% 6.4%
B5+= BB PN (Note) (Note)
(H1at) (K1at)

Wi AEEERESEBEFIMERRERA -

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group'’s total assets and equity
attributable to shareholders were HK$3,014 million and HK$2,854
million respectively, representing a respective increase of 8% and
9% as compared with last year, which was mainly attributable
to increase in investments in associates and their contribution
attributable to the Group during the year.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is to maintain
adequate funds for financing working capital and seizing
investment opportunities, as and when they become available.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

As at 31st March, 2013, current assets were HK$126 million,
increased by 87% year-on-year as current year's amount
included the loan note of ITC Properties which would be matured
in November 2013. Current liabilities were HK$158 million,
increased by 228% as compared with last year. The increase
was mainly due to reclassification of the convertible notes of
the Company ("Convertible Notes”), which would be matured in
November 2013, from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.
Accordingly, the Group’s current ratio was 0.8 (2012: 1.4).

GEARING

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had bank deposits, bank
balances and cash of HK$40 million, bank borrowings of
HKS$53 million and HK$96 million recognised as the liability
component of the Convertible Notes. All bank borrowings were
either repayable within one year or on demand and were at
floating interest rates. The Convertible Notes, which pays an
annual interest of 5%, were initially issued in November 2009
with a 2-year maturity but was subsequently extended to 2nd
November, 2013. During the year, approximately 147 million
shares were issued upon conversion of the Convertible Notes
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$44 million. As at 31st
March, 2013, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Notes was HK$99 million and the conversion price
was HK$0.30 per share.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 3.8% as at 31st March, 2013 (2012:
4.6%)., calculated on the basis of net borrowings of HK$109
million over the equity attributable to shareholders of HK$2,854
million. Net borrowings is arrived at by deducting bank deposits,
bank balances and cash from the aggregate of borrowings and
the liability component of the Convertible Notes.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, hence the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates is minimal and no foreign
exchanging hedging instruments are used.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2013, a property with carrying value of HK$25
million was pledged to a bank to secure general facility granted
to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had no contingent liabilities,
except that upon disposal of subsidiaries in 2011, the Group had
given an indemnity relating to unrecorded taxation liabilities, if
any, and the affairs and business of the subsidiaries up to the
date of disposal fo the purchaser.

11

WZE—=F=ZA=+—H" ZIKEEZL.’{EJJ%S
/£ /5126,000,0007 7T * 1EF 1L IN87% * & EEﬁA
Z?Sifi%ﬁfa%u%éléiméz%mﬂFHﬂA
—=Ft+—ARHMRE- $E@ZW@JEJ%
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had a total of 64 employees.
It is the Group’s remuneration policy that the employees’
remuneration is based on the employees’ skill, knowledge
and involvement in the Company’s affairs and is determined
by reference to the Company’s performance, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions. The ultimate objective of the remuneration
policy is to ensure that the Group is able to attract, retain and
motivate a high-calibre team which is essential to the success
of the Company. The Group also offers benefits to employees
including discretionary bonus, training, provident funds and
medical coverage. The share option scheme of the Company is
established for the eligible participants (including employees)
but no share options were granted during the year and there is
no outstanding share option as at 31st March, 2013 and as at
the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2013

ITC Properties

In April 2013, the Group and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy ("Ms. Ng”,
spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles) converted ITCP Notes
in the principal amounts of HK$54.4 million and HK$297 million
respectively into approximately 25.9 million and 141.3 million
shares of ITC Properties at the conversion price of HK$2.102
per share (“April Conversion”). The Group’s interest in ITC
Properties decreased from 37.3% as at 31st March, 2013 to 30.9%
immediately after the April Conversion. Furthermore, the Group
acquired an aggregate of approximately 12.7 million shares of
ITC Properties at the total consideration of HK$41.8 million on the
open market (“April Acquisition”), coupling with the conversion
of ITCP Notes and exercise of share options of ITC Properties by
other parties, the Group’s interest in ITC Properties increased
from 30.9% after the April Conversion to 32.9% as at the date of
this report.

With reference to the latest published annual results of ITC
Properties, the expected financial effect to be recognised in the
profit or loss of the Group for the next financial year in relation
to the April Conversion and April Acquisition will be a loss of
approximately HK$140 million and a gain of approximately HK$24
million respectively. The expected loss for the dilution of the
Group’s inferest in ITC Properties upon the aforesaid conversion
of ITCP Notes and exercise of share options of ITC Properties by
other parties will be approximately HK$4 million.
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In April 2013, the Group also acquired ITCP Notfes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$43.85 million at the
consideration of HK$55.07 million. On a fully diluted basis, the
Group’s interest in ITC Properties would further decrease from
32.9% as at the date of this report to 31.0%. The estimated net
loss to be recognised in the profit or loss of the Group would
be approximately HK$48 million calculated with reference to
the latest published annual results of ITC Properties, which
includes (i) the estimated gain of approximately HK$27 million
on conversion of ITCP Notes in the principal amount of HK$43.85
million by the Group; and (ii) the estimated loss of approximately
HK$75 million on conversion of all ITCP Notes and exercise of all
share options of ITC Properties by other parties.

Rosedale

In June 2013, Rosedale announced a capiftal injection plan
for Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. ("Rosedale Beijing”) of
which an investor has conditionally agreed to make a capital
contribution of US$68.8 million in cash. The investor shall pay a
compensation amount estimated at approximately RMB530.2
million to Rosedale in consideration of waiving its pre-emption
rights fo make the capital contribution. Upon completion of the
capital injection, Rosedale’s interest in Rosedale Beijing will be
reduced from 88.2% to 17.6% and Rosedale expects to recognise
a gain of HK$537.7 million. The actual gain or loss will depend on
the financial position of Rosedale Beijing at completion. Based
on the aforementioned gain to Rosedale and the Group's 29.7%
interest in Rosedale as at the date of this report, the Group will
share approximately HK$160 million. The capital injection plan is
subject to, among others, the approval by the shareholders of
Rosedale.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

As a result of the issue of shares upon conversion of the
Convertible Notes and under the scrip dividend scheme for
final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2012, the total
number of issued shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each was
927,600,100 as at 31st March, 2013 and as at the date of this
report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31st
March, 2013 (2012: HK3.0 cents) to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company as at the close of business on Wednesday, 28th
August, 2013. The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid
to the shareholders of the Company by post on or about Friday,
4th October, 2013 following approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The proposed final dividend
is conditional upon the passing of an ordinary resolution to
approve the final dividend at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board has also proposed that
the final dividend should be satisfied in cash, with an option to
elect scrip dividend of shares, in respect of part or all of such
dividend. The market value of the shares to be issued under
the scrip dividend proposal will be fixed by reference to the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company for
the three consecutive trading days ending 28th August, 2013 less
a discount of five percent of such average price or par value of
shares, whichever is the higher. The proposed scrip dividend is
conditional upon the Hong Kong Stock Exchange granting the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the new shares to be issued
and the passing at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company of an ordinary resolution to approve the final
dividend. A circular giving full details of the scrip dividend
proposal and a form of election will be sent to shareholders of
the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26th August, 2013 to Wednesday, 28th August, 2013,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later than
4:00 p.m. on Friday, 23rd August, 2013.
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OUTLOOK

The global economy is still mounting with uncertainties amid
the challenges of recovery from the debt crisis for the eurozone,
potential future withdrawal of monetary policy measures by the
United States and the possible slowdown of Mainland China’s
economic growth. Against this backdrop, the economic and
business environment is expected to be challenging.

The Group's strategic framework will continue to keep the Group
well-poised for opportunities as well as meeting the challenges
ahead. The diversified business activities of the Group’s strategic
investments enable the Group fto miftigate the risk of over-
reliance of a particular sector and country. The Group will
maintain its prudent but proactive investment approach in
pursuing opportunities and supporting its strategic investments in
order to bring long-term value to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Company and extend my appreciation to all management and
staff members for their contribution and dedication throughout
the year.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2013
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DIRECTORS

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 58, is the Chairman of
the Company. He joined the Group in February 1997 and is
responsible for the Group’s corporate strategies and planning.
Dr. Chan holds an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws and a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Civil Engineering and has over 33 years’
international corporate management and strategic investment
experience in a diversified range of businesses including
construction, property, infrastructure, entertainment and
media, hotel and related business, information technology,
pharmaceutical and health products. Dr. Chan is a non-
executive director of PYl Corporation Limited (0498.HK) and
Television Broadcasts Limited (0511.HK). Dr. Chan is the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International
Limited and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are
substantial shareholders of the Company as disclosed in the
section headed ‘Inferests and short positions of substantial
shareholders/other persons recorded in the register kept under
section 336 of the SFO” in the directors’ report of this annual
report. He is the father of Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan and the elder
brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, who are both
executive directors of the Company.

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, aged 58, is the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. She is also the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. She joined the Group in February 1997 and is responsible
for the Group’s operations and business development. Ms.
Chau has over 33 years’ experience in international corporate
management and finance. She holds a Bachelor's Degree and a
Master's Degree in Commerce and has professional accounting
qualifications and experience in different jurisdictions. She is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the CPA Australia, and a member of the
Certified General Accountants’ Association of Canada. Ms.
Chau is a director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the
securities of which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(BU.TSX), The NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ) and the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange (WKN 157793-FWB). She is a General
Committee member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies.
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Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, aged 54, joined the Company
as an executive director in November 1997 and is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a
diploma in arts and has over 30 years’ experience in trading
business in the PRC. Mr. Chan was the executive director and
managing director of Hanny Holdings Limited (0275.HK) unfil
August 2011. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles, the Chairman of the Company and the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International Limited
and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are substantial
shareholders of the Company, and is the uncle of Mr. Chan Yiu
Lun, Alan, an executive director of the Company.

Chan Fut Yan, aged 59, joined the Company as an execufive
director in December 1997. He is also a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan has over
40 years’ experience in the local construction field specialising
in planning of construction business. He is also the managing
director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK). Mr. Chan
resigned as the deputy chairman and an executive director
of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (now known as Louis XllI
Holdings Limited) (0577.HK) on 19th February, 2013.

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 29, joined the Company as an
executive director in March 2009 and is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from
Trinity College of Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United
States of America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political
Science - International Relations. He previously worked in the
investment banking division of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
Mr. Chan is an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
(0199.HK) and PYI Corporation Limited (0498.HK) ("PYI"); and
an alternate director to Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, a non-
executive director of PYIl. He is a director of Burcon NutraScience
Corporation, the securities of which are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.
NASDAQ) and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (WKN 157793-
FWB). Mr. Chan is an advisor to the Bisagni Environmental
Enterprise (BEE Inc.). Mr. Chan is a son of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles, the Chairman of the Company and the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International Limited
and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are substantial
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Chan is also a nephew of
Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, an executive director of the
Company.
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Chuck, Winston Calptor, aged 57, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2001. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chuck
graduated from the University of Western Ontario, Canada with
a Bachelor of Arts Degree. He is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and has over 31 years’ experience in the legal fields. Mr.
Chuck is also an independent non-executive director of Starlight
International Holdings Limited (0485.HK) and was appointed
as an independent non-executfive director of Sunley Holdings
Limited (1240.HK) on 18th October, 2012.

Lee Kit Wah, aged 57, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2004. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated
from University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Commerce. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He has been practising as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong since 1988 and is the managing
director of an accounting firm. Mr. Lee is also an independent
non-executive director of Sinocom Software Group Limited (0299.
HK) and Datronix Holdings Limited (0889.HK).
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Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, sss, sp, aged 68, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive director in June
2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Shek graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree. Mr. Shek has been a member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China representing the real
estate and constfruction functional constituency since 2000.
Currently, Mr. Shek is a member of both the Court and the
Council of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the
Court of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is
also a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
and the Vice Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints
Council in Hong Kong. Mr. Shek was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace in 1995 and awarded Silver Bauhinia Star in
2007. Mr. Shek is the vice chairman and an independent non-
executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK).
He is the chairman and an independent non-executive director
of Chuang’s China Investments Limited (0298.HK). Mr. Shek is
also an independent non-executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited (0659.HK), Midas International Holdings Limited (1172.
HK), Paliburg Holdings Limited (0617.HK), Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (1212.HK), Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited (0367.HK), Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (1192.
HK), Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (2007.HK),
MTR Corporation Limited (0066.HK), Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. (0404.HK), Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (0047.
HK), SIM Holdings Limited (0880.HK), China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (1313.HK) and Dorsett Hospitality International
Limited (company name was changed from Kosmopolito Hotels
International Limited on 31st August, 2012) (2266.HK). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Assef
Management (CP) Limited, the manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (2778. HK). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited,
the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (1881.HK). He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Lai
Fung Holdings Limited (1125.HK) on 19th December, 2012.

SECRETARY

Kam Suet Fan, aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She is also the secretary of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. Kam has over 24 years’ experience in company
secretarial field. Prior to joining the Group in May 2002, she was
the company secretary of certain companies listed in Hong
Kong. She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Law from a university
in China and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law.
She is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
believes that good corporate governance practices are essential
for effective management to enhancing shareholders’ value. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
a quality Board, sound internal controls, and fransparency
and accountability to all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March, 2013,
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has continued to adopt the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules (the "Model Code") as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2013.

The Company has also continued to adopt a code of conduct
governing securities fransactions by employees who may
possess or have access to inside information of the Company or
its securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The members of the Board are individually and collectively
responsible for the leadership and control, and for promoting
the success, of the Company by directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises eight Directors, including the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director, three other executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that strong independent
elements are included in the Board, enabling the Board to
exercise judgment independently and make decision objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. A list containing the names of all Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the respective websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company, which would
be updated from time to time when there are any changes.
Biographical details of the Directors, showing a good balance of
professional expertise and diverse range of experience among
them, are set out on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report. The
Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other, except that Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Kwok
Chuen, Augustine and Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan is a son and a
nephew of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr. Chan Kwok
Chuen, Augustine respectively.

As part of an ongoing process of Director’s training, the Directors
are updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules. They are provided with written materials from time to time
to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors
participated in continuous professional development in the year
under review by way of attending training/briefing/seminar
on topics relevant to their duties. The Company has received
confirmation from all Directors of their respective training records
for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

The Board is responsible for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. It has delegated the Executive
Board with authority and responsibility for handling the
management functions and operations of the day-to-day
business of the Company, while reserving certain key matters
for the approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be
taken by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaratfion of interim
dividend and making recommendation of final dividend or other
distributions, notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and T14A
of the Listing Rules and making recommendation for capital
reorganisation or scheme of arrangement of the Company.
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During the year under review, four regular Board meetings were
held with at least fourteen days’ notfice given to all Directors and
additional Board meeting(s) were held as and when necessary.
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Chairman met with the independent
non-executive Directors without the executive Directors being
present during the year. The Board and each Director have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties as a
Director may convene, or request the secretary of the Company
to convene, a meeting of the Board fo approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice. The Company
has arranged directors and officers liability insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors.

The attendance of each individual member of the following
meetings during the year under review is set out in the following
table:

REEFERN BRTZOREZEFSEE
ERTE2REEELTHEAEN  YCRAFE
HERETELEZEeR  EFAEREHMARE
FHAEHAIBRE - RAFE - TREERTE
FRFTEBUFNTESTEH EFERTE
ENETEBARRZEREERE -EZURR
FEBUIEEER  UBETHERESZBE -
AEMARERARRZWEAHESS S It
EBRBILARREMBEXER - LR EF A8
HEERITEME ARFREREEREBEA
B2 HEERBRRE -

BEXRERMEFENEATERZLFEBRAAS
HIN T

Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend
HEEE SEREREZEE
Corporate Annual
Audit Governance Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EEnE 58 B TEER RBE M REEEF
ZE8 ZE8 ZEg ZB88 -1
Executive Directors HITEE
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  FRE 38 (£ /E) 5/6 1/1
(Chairman)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna EE¥S 6/6 2/2 11 4/4 1/1
(Deputy Chairman and (B
Managing Director) FEELTIE)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine FREI# 6/6 1
Chan Fut Yan R 6/6 2/2 1
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan PR 2 0% 5/6 1
Independent non-executive BV IHEHITEE
Direcfors
Chuck, Winston Calptor BE 6/6 2/2 2/2 11 4/4 11
Lee Kit Wah FHE 6/6 2/2 2/2 7 4/4 /1
Shek Lai Him, Abraham R85 6/6 2/2 1 /1
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
segregated and are held by different individuals. The Chairman
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and the
management of the operations of the Board, while the
Managing Director takes the lead in the Group’s operations and
business development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
which provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
amended and restated bye-laws. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received the annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the
power to appoint any person as a Director at any fime either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
existing Board and such person is subject to retirement and
re-election at the first general meeting or first annual general
meeting respectively after his/her appointment. All Directors
are subject to retirement and re-election by the Shareholders
on a rotation basis and pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation such that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years at the annual general meeting. The
Board published the procedures for Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a Director on the Company’s website
and delegated its authority to the Nominaftion Committee for
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Nomination Committee of the Company
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah,
and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Ms. Chau
Mei Wah, Rosanna. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee adopted by the Board, which follow closely the
requirements of the code provisions of the Code as set out in the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The appointment of a new Director shall first be considered by
the Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment
of a Director, the Nomination Committee applies the criteria in
the nomination policy of the Company and identifies suitably
qualified candidate to become Board members to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
consideration and approval. A candidate to be appointed
as independent non-executive Director must also satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the independence of each of independent non-
executive Directors, made recommendation to the Board for
putting forward Directors, who are subject to retirement by
rotation, for re-appointment as Directors at the annual general
meeting, and approved and adopted the nomination policy of
the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a Remuneration Committee of the
Company with a majority of the members being independent
non-executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee Kit
Wah, and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Ms.
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna.
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and fransparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee, pursuant
to its terms of reference, has power either (i) to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management; or (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.
During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
determined, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
of executive Directors and secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”). The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Commifttee adopted by the Board, which follow
closely the requirements of the code provisions of the Code, are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
principally performed the followings: making recommendation to
the Board on Directors’ fees for the approval by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting, approving/recommending the
directors’ fees of Directors and reviewing and approving the
remuneration and/or discretionary bonus of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary.

With the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Board sets the remuneration policy of Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Company about its proposals relating fo remuneration packages
of the Directors and the senior management of the Company.
The emoluments of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are based on their individual skills, knowledge
and involvement in the Company’s affairs and are determined
by reference to the Company’s performance, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market condifions. The ultimate objective of the remuneration
is fo ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate a high-calibre team which is essential to the success of
the Company.

The monthly salary for Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Ms. Chau
Mei Wah, Rosanna, Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine and Mr.
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan were adjusted to HK$320,000, HK$320,000,
HKS$170,000 and HK$130,000 respectively commencing from
1st April, 2013. Information on emoluments of the directors of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2013 is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year
under review, no Director or any of his associates was involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company consists of two executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna (Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee) and Mr. Chan Fut Yan and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chuck,
Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring (i) the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company; (ii) the Company’s policies
and practices in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements; (iii) the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the Company’s employees and the
Directors; and (iv) the Company’s compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The terms
of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee, which
follow closely the requirements of the Code, was adopted by the
Board. The Corporate Governance Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Corporate Governance
Committee adopted the corporate governance policy of the
Company, reviewed the compliance policy of the Company
and the code of conduct for the Directors and the employees
of the Company, reviewed the compliance of the Code for the
year ended 31st March, 2012 and for the six months ended 30th
September, 2012 and made recommendation to the Board for
the approval of the Corporate Governance Report, reviewed
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and the former Company Secretary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the
Company consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Kit Wah (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Chuck, Winston Calptor and Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee Kit Wah, who is a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
conftrols.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing
the Company’s financial reporting system and internal conftrol
procedures (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, fraining programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function),
reviewing the Group’s financial information and reviewing the
relationship with the external auditor of the Company. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board,
which follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of
the Code, have been posted on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee performed the responsibilities under its
terms of reference and other duties as set out in code provisions
of the Code applicable to the Committee. It met with the
Directors and external auditors to review the interim/annual
results and reports. It considered and discussed the reports
with external auditors, with a view of ensuring that the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed
and made recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
draft audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March, 2012 and the draft unaudited interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30th September, 2012, discussed the accounting policies and
practices which may affect the Group with the management
and the Company’s external auditor, made recommendation
on the re-appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
reviewed the fees charged by the external auditor; and reviewed
the internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("Deloitte”), the Group’s
principal auditor, was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16th August,
2012 as the Company’s external auditor until the next annual
general meeting. For the year ended 31st March, 2013, the total
fee paid/payable in respect of statutory audit and non-audit
services provided by Deloitte is set out in the following table:-

BB B

RARBE-_Z——FN\ATBETZRRE
FAEL AKRBEZIERHOREY - BERTS
SETENTT ([128])) BERRER BA QR 25N
2D EHMETERRBFAGA/L - REBEE—
T-=ZF-_A=t+—HLFE EHMEHZ
EERBIFREBRBE 2EN N2 EREE
IR TR -

Fee paid/payable
1t A E A
Services rendered FriR AR 3% for the year ended 31st March,
BE=A=+—HLEFE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —ET——HF
HK$°'000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Audit services RS 1,798 1,910
Non-audit services IEZ B R
Taxation advisory BRI 35 48
Special engagements HEZE 7 757
Total fee paid/payable for the year FEREHRN ENFZ2ERAAH 1,840 2,715
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EEHHKEBERRZ2ET

STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis. The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set outf in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 47
and 48 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve
the Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business
operations. The Directors have adopted an internal control
policy for the Group. The internal control policy is fundamental
to the successful operation and day-to-day running of a business
and it assists the Company in achieving its business objective.

The policy has been developed with a primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management. The
Company’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, fo ensure maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Company’s objective.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions and
particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
Company Secretary’'s biography is set out in the Biographies of
Directors and Secretary of this annual report. Mr. Lai Kwok Hung,
Alex resigned as the Company Secretary on 28th February, 2013
and Ms. Kam Suet Fan was appointed as the Company Secretary
on the same date. The remuneration paid to the existing/former
Company Secretary during the year ended 31st March, 2013
were within the remuneration band between HK$1,000,000 to
HK$2,000,000.

The Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with

all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an on going
and transparent communication with the Shareholders and,
in particular, uses general meetings to communicate with
them and encourage their participation. The Company
also uses various other means of communication with the
Shareholders, such as publication of annual and inferim reports,
announcements, circulars and additional information on the
Group’s business activities and development on the Company’s
website: www.itc.com.hk.

A shareholders communication policy was adopted to ensure
that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

In order to bring the constitution of the Company in line
with certain amendments made to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the Listing Rules, to incorporate certain
housekeeping amendments and to consolidate the proposed
amendments and all previous amendments made to the bye-
laws of the Company (the "Bye-laws”), certain amendments to
the Bye-laws and the adoptfion of the amended and restated
Bye-laws were approved by way of special resolutions on 16th
August, 2012 at the annual general meeting. A summary of the
principal amendments to the Bye-laws is set out in the circular of
the Company dated 9th July, 2012. An up-to-date memorandum
of association and amended and restated Bye-laws is available
at the "Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s
website.

During the year under review, all resolutions put forward at the
annual general meeting were conducted by way of poll and poll
results were posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules. Details of procedure for conducting a poll
was explained at each general meeting of the Company and
questions from Shareholders regarding the voting procedures
were answered. Notice of not less than 20 clear business days
was sent to the Shareholders for the annual general meeting of
the Company during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders carrying not less than one-tenth of the fotal voting
right at general meeting of the Company have the right, by
signed written requisition to the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong, fo require a special
general meeting to be called for the business specified in such
requisition.

Shareholder(s) carrying not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting right at general meeting or not less than 100 Shareholders
have the following rights by depositing the following documents
at the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong:

(i) not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting,
a signed written request for a proposed resolution (other
than a proposal for election as a director) to be moved at
that meeting; and

(i) not less than one week before the general meeting, a
signed statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to any proposed resolution or business to be dealt with in
that general meeting.

For the above purpose, the Shareholder(s) concerned shall
also deposit with the Company a sum of money reasonably
sufficient fo meet the expenses in serving the request/statement
to all Shareholders. Procedures for Shareholder(s) to propose
for election as a director of the Company are available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s welbsite.

Shareholders who have enquires to the Board may write to

the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

By Order of the Board

Kam Suet Fan
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2013
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March,
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The principal activities and particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries and the Group’s principal associates as at
31st March, 2013 are set out in notes 40 and 18, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and conftribution to operating
results for the year ended 31st March, 2013 is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 49 of the annual report.

The directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31st
March, 2013, which will be payable in cash with an option to
elect scrip dividend of shares to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 28th
August, 2013 (2012: HK3.0 cents in cash with scrip option).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 52 and 53 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue afttributable to the Group’s five largest
customers during the year were less than 30% of the Group’s
total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers during the year were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 139 of
the annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the revaluation and movements of the investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31st March, 2013,
the Group had only one investment property which is situated
at No. 1946/50 West Broadway, Vancouver, B.C., Canada for
commercial use and the lease term of such property is freehold.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set outf in nofe 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
conftributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities.

In the opinion of the directors, subject to the restrictions as
stipulated in the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as described

ME- BERRE

AEBEZME  BEMRKBREFAZZHFEH
SRR & B AR M E15

REWR
AEBEZREMENFAZEGRESHFRH
IIRGEMBHRERMTFI6-R_TE—=F=1

—t+—H AEERE—REVMELRNERE
B S ENo. 1946/50 West Broadway e 3
BE AEMECHEFTHAKAERE-

N

ARBZBARFRNZ BENFIBHIRERE M
R ETFE28 -

AR 2 ® 7Dk

REEBRE1981FRANE (KIERT)  ARFIZE
HRBIEAESIK - A AR FEUTIBRT
BUEHAKTIRSIRMNRE SRR IEH DK

(@) BB RIEMEREEETMEE &

() HREEZEREESIREAE -

EEZRAE BELIMNBEREZEIGIFRAAERT
FIR > ARRIR - E—=F=A=+—Ha#E»

above, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to IR FIRERFEELT -
shareholders as at 31st March, 2013 were as follows:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET TET
Contributed surplus ERAH 222,435 222,435
Accumulated profits ZEHaE A 955,339 1,005,190
1,177,774 1,227,625
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BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings repayable within one year or on demand are
classified as current liabilities. Details of the repayment analysis
of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31st March, 2013 are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine
Chan Fut Yan
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Independent non-executive directors:
Chuck, Winston Calptor

Lee Kit Wah

Shek Lai Him, Abraham

In accordance with Bye-law 98(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, Mr. Chan Fut Yan and Mr. Lee
Kit Wah will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All retiring directors, being eligible for re-election, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws. No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service confract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March, 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 fo the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

-HEROREREE ZE

RZE—=F=ZA=1+—B ARAEERIZ
THRABRARRSEMEEEE (EERLES
REE G ([ExBEEE D F+TRE) 2k
o RO LEREFHEREESLBERK
{35216 A B CN AR A TR TF B R A 2 #
SRR BRBEEMARZAARLAA (&
BB ES LR EmARR]) M+
ZETBETAESETEFRSNEESTR (1R
ETRID MASTTHEARRE RE BT
mEXREWT

(@) REDFz2RHG - HEROREREE 2 &
mRKR

Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
shares of shares of the issued
Long position/ the Company the Company share capital
Name of director Capacity Short position held held of the Company
FHADT FREEAQAEZ EHXRQAERT
EEns 54 #HR/ KR ROHE HEROEE REIABNEIH
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 137,738,995 - 14.85%
Charles ExBEA HE (Note)
R 58 (H1:t)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position - 60,000,000 6.47%
Charles ExBEA HE (Note)
REl5 (H1iz)
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 202,678,125 - 21.85%
Charles corporation (Note) ~ if & (Note)
R 58 REZEHER 2 # = (H1:t)
(Hiz)
Note: WiEr -

Galaxyway Investments Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview International Limited which was, in turn, wholly-owned by
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be interested in 202,678,125 shares of the Company held
by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
held 137,738,995 shares of the Company. He also beneficially owned
the convertible notes of the Company (unlisted equity derivatives)
in the principal amount of HK$18,000,000. Upon full conversion of
such convertible notes at a conversion price of HK$0.30 per share
of the Company (subject to adjustments), 60,000,000 shares of the
Company would be issued to Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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Galaxyway Investments Limited/&Chinaview
International LimitedZ 2 & KB RQ A » M
Chinaview International Limited 8l F5 FR B 58 1§ £
A BB - BB &1 - AR 1E % B Galaxyway
Investments LimitedFT #5742 202,678,125 7 &
AR 2 % o PRIEISRIE +4576137,738,995/% 7
NEIIRD R INE =B A& & %18,000,0007# 7T
RAF A MEEE (FFLETRATETA) - &
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”)

EENRG HEROREEE &
BmRRE @

(b) REFBESEERIA ([BHEHBE]) 2
Bt HEROREEZR2EZERLR

Approximate
Number of percentage
Number of underlying of the
shares of shares of issued share
Long position/ ITC Properties ITC Properties capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position held held ITC Properties
R E HREFBE
iR E K8 ERITRE
EEns gt #HR/ KR ROEE B8 E BOED
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 177,509,041 - 43.74%
Charles corporation HE (Note 1)
PRl 58 (Note 1) (Hrt1)
REZARHEE 2 # e
(Hiiz1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 6,066,400 - 1.49%
Charles EREAA HE
RS
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of spouse Long position 141,294,005 - 34.82%
Charles (Note 1) HE (Note 1)
REl 5 L (1)
(1)
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position 3,200,000 - 0.79%
Rosanna EREAA HE
eSS
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position - 6,733,111 1.66%
Rosanna ExfEA HE (Notes 2 and 3)
eSS (Hfit2/23)
Chan Fut Yan Beneficial owner Long position - 2,900,000 0.71%
PR 58 B, EnEBA HE (Note 2)
(Hfit2)
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position - 1,500,000 0.37%
Alan EmfEA HE (Note 2)
R B BBt (r:t2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) (confinued)

Notes:

1. On 28th February, 2013, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, sent a conditional conversion
notice to ITC Properties stating that subject to the fulfilment of
certain conditions, they intended fo exercise their conversion
rights fo convert the convertible notes of ITC Properties in
an aggregate principal amounts of HK$54,400,000 and
HK$297,000,000 respectively at the current conversion price of
HK$2.102 per share of ITC Properties (subject to adjustments).
Assuming completion of conversion of the aforesaid
convertible notes, 25,880,113 shares and 141,294,005 shares of
ITC Properties would be issued fo such indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy and/or
their nominees, respectively.

The indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held/
deemed to be interested in 177,509,041 shares of ITC Properties
(of which 25,880,113 shares were the conversion shares as
mentioned above). By virtue of his direct and deemed interests
in approximately 36.70% of the issued share capital of the
Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be
interested in these shares of ITC Properties held/deemed to
be interested in by the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

At 31st March, 2013, Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy deemed to be
interested in 141,294,005 shares of ITC Properties (all of which
were the conversion shares as mentioned above). Dr. Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed fo be interested in these
shares of ITC Properties deemed to be interested in by Ms. Ng
Yuen Lan, Macy.
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EFETE®mEF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EERRGD MHEROREESZE

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES mRRE #)

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares (b) REFHWEEEERAR ([EHFHHE])
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC 25 AR R ERESEIEERKE
Properties”) (continued) (4&)

Notes: (continued) Hiet - (&)

2. Details of outstanding share options (unlisted equity 2. RIZE—=F=A=+—8 EZEHEET
derivatives) granted to the directors of the Company by ITC RAREEZHARITE 2 ERE (GE LR
Properties as at 31st March, 2013 were as follows: AOTETERE)FBIT -

Number of share options Exercise price
BREHAE per share of
Outstanding Outstanding ITC Properties as at
Name of as at as at 31st March, 2013
optionholder Date of grant Option period* * 1.4.2012 31.3.2013 (subject to adjustments)
R-E-=F RZE-= BREXBERD
AR mA—H =R=+-H R-ZE-=%=H=+-H
BEAKE FEBEH IR R W i RAT e R AT ZOEE (T FURE)
HKS
BT
Chau Mei Wah,  29.3.2010 29.3.2010 to 28.3.2014 1,500,000 1,500,000 2.22
Rosanna —T-%F ZZ-TF=A-+tNRZE
BxE =ZRA=ThH —Z-ME=F=FNH
Chan Fut Yan 29.3.2010 29.3.2010 to 28.3.2014 2,900,000 2,900,000 2.22
B R —T-%F T-TF=AZTNhHZE
=ZA=-t+hH ZZ-mME=A=+NH
Chan Yiu Lun, 29.3.2010 29.3.2010 to 28.3.2014 1,500,000 1,500,000 2.22
Alan —Z-ZF “E-ZFE=A-t+NRE
BRIE B =A=thH —E-ME=A=+/\HB
** In relation to the grant of share options on 29th March, MR ZE-TF=ZA-TAAEHEZ
2010 and subject to the terms and conditions of the EREMS RIRBEREEHWENRZT
share option scheme of ITC Properties adopted on 26th TFNAZ+HANBERMZERER
August, 2002, the share options shall be exercisable at B2 GRS AR - B P i A A R AR
any fime during the option period and subject further to a B AR IR AT - M E AR & Z50%
maximum of 50% of the share options shall be exercisable BREATRE—_FHE(ZZE—F=
during the second year period commencing from 29th AZt+hBEZTE—ZF=ZA=Z+N
March, 2011 fo 28th March, 2012 with the balance of the B) RITEE - Bk AT R AR AT 7
share options not yet exercised may be exercised during ZE-ZHFZAZFTNAE=ZT N
the period commencing from 29th March, 2012 to 28th F=AZ+N\BHBERTE -
March, 2014.

3.  Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna held convertible notes of 3. FAEELITHEHAEZARS 1,000,000 TE
ITC Properties in the principal amount of HK$11,000,000 FHEFRERER GELTERAITETA) -
(unlisted equity derivatives). Assuming full conversion of such fR R LA R M8 & RIS A M E B 192.102/8 7T

(AT FPLARAE) BEERZ T RRERN - &
7+ i 25 175,233, 11 TR = L s ZE AR D ©

convertible notes at the conversion price of HK$2.102 per share
of ITC Properties (subject to adjustments), 5,233,111 shares of
ITC Properties would be issued to Ms. Chau.
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EFETE®mEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EER
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES = &%

(continued)

Bz
BB

-HEROREREE ZE

(c) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares (c) RREEEERLAT ([RE]) 2K -

and debentures of PYl Corporation Limited (“PYI") RO EEESEEZRKR
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the
Long position/ shares of issued share
Name of director Capacity Short position PYI held capital of PYI
HRE
PR & BEBRTRAE
BEspns 54 #HR/ %R ROHE BREA L
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 1,226,971,695 26.81%
Charles corporation (Note 1) HE
BR B 58 REEHER 2 #
(Bizt1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 35,936,031 0.79%
Charles EnEEA HE
BR B 58
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position 6,000 0.00%
Abraham EnBEAA HE
VEELE
Notes: Kz -
1. The shares of PYl were held by an indirect wholly-owned 1. REBRMDEARF—HEHEE2ENBAGE

subsidiary of the Company. By virtue of his direct and deemed
interests in approximately 36.70% of the issued share capital of
the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed fo
be interested in these shares of PYl held by the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

2. As at Tst April, 2012, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna and Mr. 2.

Chan Fut Yan held share options (unlisted equity derivatives)
(which were granted on 28th December, 2004) with rights to
subscribe for 3,626,666 shares and 7,083,334 shares of PYI,
respectively, at HK$0.5294 per share (subject to adjustments)
during the period from 28th December, 2004 to 26th August,
2012. These share options were vested on the datfe of grant
and were lapsed on 27th August, 2012.
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B ENEERRBRIEEAARR D BT
IR AR #936.70%.2 f 2t - FREIRIE L HARIER
BMARF—HEEE2EWERRMAHFE 2%
SRER MDD HEEER ©

R-TE——FWNA—H BAxFELTLEGHE
BrRAHEER_ZTNF+_A=-1+N\AH
BERTZEREGELETRATTETA) -
BEEER - ZTTZNF+-_A-+N\HBHE
—E——FNAZFTAABHEUERRE
f%170.52947% 7T (Al F AT ) 2 RE 5 BIR
F53,626,6660% 1R = §% 10 127,083,334 1R 3
Eh o ZEEBRERBHAMEBLR=Z
——ENAZ++BEER-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(d) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
("Rosedale™)

EERRGD  HEAROREES &
BmRRE @)

(d) RHEBEZRAERLIT ([HE 2K
7 HEROREEREERKAR

Number of Approximate percentage
Long position/ shares of of the issued share
Name of director Capacity Short position Rosedale held capital of Rosedale
BEspns 4% Be/ KA FBHBEROBE MAHESRTREAHSMEI L
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 195,706,000 29.76%
Charles corporation 35}
PR 58 (Note)
REEHEE
2
(Ki#t)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial Long position 1,132,450 0.17%
Charles owner gE
BR B 58 EmBAA
Note: Wit

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
195,706,000 shares of Rosedale. By virtue of his direct and deemed
interests in approximately 36.70% of the issued share capital of
the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be
interested in these shares of Rosedale held by the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
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EE 2R

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(e) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of Burcon NutraScience Corporation

CHEHEROREREZE

(e) MBurcon NutraScience Corporation

([Burcon) 2 - HERHORBEERZ

("Burcon”) EERAR
Number of
underlying
shares (in Approximate
respect of the percentage
share options of the
Number of (unlisted equity issued share
Long position/ shares of derivatives)) capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position Burcon held of Burcon held Burcon
Fr#%Burcon
ZHBER®
(FEBRE
(LT {&Burcon
Fi#Burcon B ARETE ERITRE
BEspns 5% BE/ KA BOHA IR))#E BABSH
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position 405,389 - 1.28%
Rosanna EnlEBA HE
EES
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position - 72,500 0.23%
Rosanna EnlEBA HE
EES
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position - 105,000 0.33%
Alan EREAA e
R 12 Bk
As at 31st March, 2013, ITC Properties, PYl, Rosedale and Burcon AZE—ZF=ZA=+—H REF %&%ﬁ%’i

were associated corporations of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was, by virtue of his direct and
deemed interests in approximately 36.70% of the issued share
capital of the Company, deemed to be interested in the shares
and underlying shares (in respect of equity derivatives), if any,
of the associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) of the Company held by the Group under Part XV of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2013, none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required fo be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise nofified fo the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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1'7&15‘]5%‘1‘3:1%52&% EEME RE - B
BurconJ3 KA &) 2 FHEE X E o

ERHEEREEIEREARARBEITRAY
36 70%2 s - RIBFESREEEMNE TR -
PRENSR IS IR ARER AL B A 2 A QR HEEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 19th
August, 2011 ("2011 Scheme”). No share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. At 31st March,
2013, there was no outstanding share option granted by the
Company pursuant to the 2011 Scheme.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangements
which enabled the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors, chief executives or
their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company were interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group as at 31st March, 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, there was no
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
of the Company which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. None of the related party
fransactions set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements are such transactions required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BRERZRBEEMEI6HERTFZE
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN AT EZEERR HitA L2
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE BERAR

SFO

As at 31st March, 2013, so far as is known to the directors and
the chief executives of the Company, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required fo be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

R-E—ZF=F=+—B BEAAAZEER
EBFHABAAE  RIEE SRS E0E
336lEIRTE 2 AN R BRMAE ST = ERE S
Bty A+ AR A2 IR RAARIIR R 2 s S
amT

(a) Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in

(0) TERRAALDARDZEBRKXR

shares of the Company

Number of Approximate

Number of underlying percentage of

shares of shares of the issued

Long position/ the Company the Company share capital

Name Capacity Short position held held of the Company

FEADT FEADAZ EHEEXARFCHT

nE/ER 514 BRe/ KR ROHE HEROHBE KREASAEIL

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 137,738,995 - 14.85%
Charles EnEEA 59°) (Note)
REl5 (i)

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position - 60,000,000 6.47%

Charles EmMAA e (Note)
REl5 (Hiz)

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 202,678,125 - 21.85%
Charles corporation (Note) ¥ & (Note)
R 58 REZEHEE 2 s (i)

(i)

Chinaview International  Interest of controlled Long position 202,678,125 - 21.85%
Limited corporation (Note) ¥ & (Note)
REZEHEE 2 s (i)

(i)

Galaxyway Beneficial owner Long position 202,678,125 - 21.85%
Investments Limited EmMAA e (Note)
(i)

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse Long position 400,417,120 - 43.17%
{0 158 7 (Note) 585 (Note)
BB (i) (i)
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BRERZRBEEMEI6HERTFZE
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN MR EZETERR HitAL 2
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE Rk AE @

SFO (continued)

(a) Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in
shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

Galaxyway Investments Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview International Limited which was, in turn, wholly-owned by
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the spouse
of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Chinaview International Limited,
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy were
deemed to be interested in 202,678,125 shares of the Company held
by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
held 137,738,995 shares of the Company. He also beneficially owned
the convertible notes of the Company (unlisted equity derivatives)
in the principal amount of HK$18,000,000. Upon full conversion of
such convertible notes at a conversion price of HK$0.30 per share
of the Company (subject to adjustments), 60,000,000 shares of the
Company would be issued to Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Ms. Ng
Yuen Lan, Macy was deemed to be interested in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company held by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,

Charles.

(b) Interests and short positions of other persons in shares

(o) TERRREATRO 2 EER KA (B)

opa

Galaxyway Investments Limited&Chinaview
International Limitedz —fH 2 &M B A7 - M
Chinaview International Limited 81| i F& B9 54 18 +
2EME MM T RRERIE L 2B -
Chinaview International Limited * FR B8 18 + &
0158 38 22 T3 R AVEYE B Galaxyway Investments
Limited FTH5 5 202,678,125 A 2 A% 15 2 #E 2k ©
PR B3R 18 - #55137,738,9950 A 2 B %15 » (R4t
ML HRIER BERBERIETAFEE 2 ARA
MEEBROTEEER BNEREAELAES
818,000,000 LA A 7] 2 AT R = 4% (3E AR
RETHETR) o REBURAREFR0.30/E T (AT T
AT E) BE M Z ] RR BN - RE R+
1 & %% 1760,000,000A8 A~ 22 &) A% 17 ©

(b) EATRAQARGREBRG 2 EH

and underlying shares of the Company BERE
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
shares of shares of the issued
Long position/ the Company the Company share capital
Name Capacity Short position held held of the Company
AR R AR E 2 (XD EESBRT
wE/ BB 5% #HR/ KR 4R 4= HEROBE RABOEIL
Everland Group Beneficial owner Long position - 83,333,333 8.98%
Limited (Note 1) wE
EnERAM T
Wong Yun Sang Interest of controlled Long position - 83,333,333 8.98%
BEHE corporation (Note 1) # 7
BRI A M 2
(Brzt1)
Wong Yun Sang Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 - 0.02%
HEAE (Note 1) HE
BEEERAME)
Wong Yun Sang Interest of spouse Long position 2,198,000 - 0.24%
=EAE (Note 1) HE
ABmEa (A1)
Chen Mei May, Beneficial owner Long position 2,198,000 - 0.24%
Libby (Note 1) HE
BRER EREBA )
Chen Mei May, Interest of spouse Long position 200,000 - 0.02%
Libby (Note 1) e
BRE 1R RBREm (A1)
Chen Mei May, Interest of spouse Long position - 83,333,333 8.98%
Libby (Note 1) HE
BRER FeiBsEs (A1)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL REBSFZRHBERHIEIMHRTZE
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN ARSI TIERR HMAL 2
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE BERKE @

SFO (continued)

(b) Interests and short positions of other persons in shares

(b) HMALTREAQATARG REEARG 2 EHE

and underlying shares of the Company (continued) BRRE (&)
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
shares of shares of the issued
Long position/ the Company the Company share capital
Name Capacity Short position held held of the Company
AR FRERRZ EEAFERT
HE/EB 514 BHR/ KR ROHE HERHBE BREBNEIL
Wonderich Beneficial owner Long position 5,286,000 - 0.57%
Investments (Note 2) )
Limited BERBEBAMi2)
Wonderich Beneficial owner Long position - 43,333,333 4.67%
Investments (Nofe 2) A
Limited ESBEBAHi2)
Lee Mej Lin Interest of controlled Long position 5,286,000 - 0.57%
TxE corporation (Note 2) wE
WE AR E 2
(Htit2)
Lee Mei Lin Interest of controlled Long position - 43,333,333 4.67%
FxE corporation (Note 2) e
WEEHAE 2 i
(Htat2)
Notes: Btaz

1.

Everland Group Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Wong Yun Sang, was interested in 83,333,333 underlying shares
(in respect of unlisted equity derivatives) of the Company.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong Yun Sang was deemed to be
interested in the underlying shares of the Company in which
Everland Group Limited was interested. Mr. Wong Yun Sang
held 200,000 shares of the Company and his spouse, Ms. Chen
Mei May, Libby held 2,198,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong Yun Sang was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by his spouse and Ms. Chen Mei May, Libby
was deemed fo be inferested in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company held by her spouse and Everland
Group Limited.

Wonderich Investments Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Ms. Lee Mei Lin, was interested in 5,286,000 shares and
43,333,333 underlying shares (in respect of unlisted equity
derivatives) of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lee
Mei Lin was deemed to be inferested in the shares and
the underlying shares of the Company in which Wonderich
Investments Limited were interested.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register of the Company required fo be kept under section 336
of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31st March, 2013.

45

1. Everland Group Limited Y& EEL AR
BWEAE 2 AA] - 083,333,333 AR A1 AEE
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o REBEFFREBEGRD - SHELERHR
ﬁ’ﬁf‘EverIond Group Limited# A # @ 2 7~

NEEBARO R HEER c EERELARB
200,000/ A A A B 7 - i E BC 48 R £ J8 &
T HIF52,198,000 A2 A1 19 o &AL
AW RN ELBREB LT AR
AR EE RS MARERELZLAEEA
R E B KEverland Group LimitedFri%H
ZARNRIRGD RAATEERD P HEEE

25 o

2. Wonderich Investments Limited ] B 2= 33
Zr2EHRA 2 AT - WHS5,286,00008 A
Bl Mk {9 }243,333,333 A R RIME R R D (B
BELETMBRATETR) P HEREZE R
BEAFMBERD FTEEZIWEAER
Wonderich Investments Limited# B 25 2
RABIRGD RABERND P HEE#ER -

BEXHEREN RZTE—=F=A=+—

B RIEBEHLEAE 1'*15“%336{I71<$ RIBRTE
Bt MEEMATEEARRZK

DR G 2 EmSAR ©
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group'’s retirement benefit schemes is set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the applicable laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, there was no purchase,

sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of
the Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
external auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2013
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Y 2 B HRE S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ITC Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 49 to
138, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st March, 2013, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors deftermine is necessary to enable the preparatfion of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Y & M HRE S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtfain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March,
2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25th June, 2013
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e E2@E B AX

For fhe year ended 31st March, 2013 #ZE—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

2013 2012
Notes e —E——F
HKS’000 HKS'000
k3 FET FAET
(restated)
(g=75)
Revenue WA 4 17,798 19,548
Management and other related ERREME M
service income Bk 75 WA 3,828 3,895
Net gain on financial instruments CRMTAEZMEFE 6 9,702 27,028
Interest income F B U A 12,567 11,760
Property rental income MERS WA 1,089 3,087
Other income H i W A 975 2,232
Gain on change in fair value of investment KEMERNTEEE
property 2 WEs 66 2,000
Administrative expenses THRAXZ (53.960) (58,860)
Finance costs B 7% B 7R 8 (14,382) (18,561)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENEB QR 2 W 9 - 27,504
Net loss on deemed disposal of partial RAEH S5 & R FEH
interests in associates W 2 BB S 10 (35.330) (3,748)
Share of results of associates NS
- share of results —BEXRE 257,178 115,534
- gain on deemed acquisition and —?ﬁﬂfuﬁlﬁﬁﬁuﬁzﬁ%%ﬁ%
acquisitions of additional interests &N B
in associates Z Wz 18 32,403 322,463
Profit before taxation B 5% B i A 11 214,136 434,334
Taxation I8 12 (8) =
Profit for the year REE 214,128 434,334
Other comprehensive income (expenses): Hi2mEmKA (L) :
Exchange differences arising on franslation  HEFINEREL 2
of foreign operations ME N =R (395) (585)
Share of other comprehensive BiEmE AR EMmEmE
income (expenses) of associates HﬁU\(Eﬁi) 17,965 (15,934)
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings B+ REF 2 W 104 9,233
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of BT REFESE
land and buildings ZIEFET IR 13) (1.519)
Reclassification adjustment: ENoERAE
- reserves released on deemed —RIEHEHE R T
disposal of partial interests B HE
in associates I (416) (774)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) REZHMEEBA
for the year () 17.245 (9.579)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EKARRE 231,373 424,755
HK cents HK cents
B JEN
Earnings per share FIR A A 14
Basic R 27.12 55.90
Diluted e 13.47 35.37
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2013 R=F—=F=H=+—H

¥EB ARSI

2013 2012
Notes —EF—= —E——4F
HKS’000 HKS'000
it FET FET
(restated)
(&)
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB RiEE 15 7.637 11,606
Investment property WEME 16 21,966 22,303
Intangible assets mpAE 17 1,825 1,649
Interests in associates i lelNE T e 18 2,785,380 2,518,690
Debt portion of convertible notes AR EE 2 BEE S 19 52,741 61,102
Conversion options embedded AR ERR A 2
in convertible notes i g3 79 18,634 11,421
Note receivable from an associate JE U —FEJBgE & R R R 20 - 100,000
2,888,183 2,726,771
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 29 32
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUERR - ST RTENFIE 27 3,641 1,844
Amounts due from associates JE U Bt & N B R IE 20 4,244 6,796
Loans receivable FEWE R 22 28,000 10,000
Note receivable from an associate FEUR — B R R R iR 20 50,000 =
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances HHISRITER  SRITETF
and cash &R 23 39,635 48,440
125,549 67,112
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accrued expenses FES BRI R FERT R X 24 9,898 11,554
Bank overdrafts |ITEX 25 52,555 36,756
Convertible notes payable AT RS IR e A SR IE 26 95,852 =
158,305 48,310
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BE) EEFE (32,756) 18,802
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 2,855,427 2,745,573
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2013 R=F—=F=H=+—H

2013 2012
Notes —E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET TFET
(restated)
(&)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes payable AR IR FE A SR IE 26 - 131,299
Deferred tax liabilities BRLERBRE 27 1,035 1,014
1,035 132,313
Net assets BEERE 2,854,392 2,613,260
Capital and reserves BRAER #EE
Share capital A&7 28 9,276 7.770
Share premium and reserves IR (B K 2,845,116 2,605,490
Total equity R 2,854,392 2,613,260
The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 138 were FHNEAOBEFI1BE IR MBHERENE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —=FRNAZThHAEEESHERBETE -
25th June, 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: THTHNEERREZTSHE
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna
PR Bl & BAx#
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
- EY# & s
51 ANNUAL REPORT 2013 4 [ 8} %




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z - F—=#=H=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEARL
Reserve Capital Property  Investment
Share Share  Contributed on  redemption Other  revaluafion  revaluation  Translation ~ Convertible Accumulated
capital ~ premium surplus  acquisition reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve notes reserve profits Total
RAEE N%Ef  REER TARES
Bs  ROER EEER  WEER G i i ENBE B ZHEA H
w00 HSO00 HKSOD MESO0D MRS HKSOD KRS0 MO HKSO0 SO0 SO0 HKSOm
thr  fEr FEr T TRt TEt TEr tEn FEn TEr T TE
(Notea) — (Nore )
Wio)  (Wie)
At1st Apr, 2011 osoriginalystaled R =F——M AR (Ej) TN IS 1% (9149) 0 054 1755 2005 1078 19260 L0007 21879
Fffectof changes in accounfing SHRREY 78

policies (nofe 2) (i) - - - - - - - - 1,865 7,865
AfTst April, 2011 as restoted R-Z-—-£MA-A(EE5) 0 SIS 19666 (91.489) w0 05 175582 205 875 19260 106912 2137658
Proft for the year KEE AT - - - - - - - P K LV
Exchange diferences arising on BEBNEBEEL

ranslation of foreign operations EXzE = = = = = = (585) = (585)
Share of other comprehensive expense EREZRFRA

of associofes 2ERR - - - - - @y (13150) (15934)
Gain on revaluafion ofland and B THRET

buidings bL: - - - - 9.8 - - - 9.2
Deferred fox arising on revaluafion of ~ EfS T REFEE

lond and buildings LERRE - - - -8 - - (1519)
Released on desmed disposal of BlELE-FRELT

parfiol inferests n associotes InkakEn - - - - - - (174 - )
Total comprehensive income KEERENA(RR)

(expenses) for the year a8 - = = = 114 (2784)  (14509) 434,334 424755
Repurchase of converfible notes EEREed | - - - - - - -0 o @)
Dividend paid (nofe 13) BARE (HEhs) - - - - - - - - (BB0) (1550)
Chonge in associates’ equiy RRBERATZRE

aftibutable fothe Group'sinferests ~ RHEHAEEREE

arising on equity ransacfion NaREEGER

of the associotes 29 - 06,438 - 1135 - - - 1,695 09.228
Release on deemed disposal of parial B EBE DB ERR

inerests n associoes - - 161 - (120) - - - - 0
Released on disposal of subsiciories i ENEAFEEH,

(n0fe) (sto) - - - - (809m) - - 180920 -
At 31t March, 2012 N-5-2E=f=1-1 1710 571,765 196,676 (24,890) 908 11,559 2346 (m) 167,24 1725 1657404 2613260
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ [ 3§ & 52




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A E@ ® B R

For fhe year ended 31st March, 2013 ##Z - F—=#=H=+—HIFFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAREAER
Reserve Capital Property  Investment
Share Share  Contributed on  redemption Other  revaluafion ~ revaluation  Translation ~ Convertible Accumulated
capital ~ premium surplus ~ acquisition reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve notes reserve profits Total
s [ WEEfE  REER TAREE
R&  ROER EEER  WEERE B EfER i i ENRE B ZiE &
000 HSO00 KRS0 MO0 HKSOD0 HKSODD MO0 HKSO00 KRS0 MO0 HKSO00 HKSOmD
At TR T TEr TEr FEn TEn T T TET FET FEn
(Noteg) — (Nore )
(Wita)  (Wite)
At Tst April, 2012 os originally stafed NZF-ZFRA- E (R3l) 1710 571,765 196,676 (24,890) 908 11,559 2346 () 167,246 17205 1645549 2601405
Fffectof changes in accounfing SRR 7E
polces (nofe 2) (i) - - - - - - SO 1 I |
A1 15t Apr, 2012 05 restofed R-F-—£M3-R(4E)) 0 S 98 (48%) W N 23 (9 N6 185 165744 2613260
Proft for the year KEEET - - - - - - SN D418
Exchange diferences ariing on AEBINEREEL
Hranslafion of foreign operations EFL%% - - - - - (39%) - (39)
Share of other comprehensive income.~ ERBEAFE Ay
of associofes 2E4E - - - - 17.1% 169 - 17,965
Gain on revaluation of fand and B THRETL
buidings W& - - - 104 - - - - s
Defered fox arsing on revaluationof ~ Ef LI REFEE
lond and buidings ZRIERR - - - (3 - - - - )
Released on deemed disposal of 1’HHE N
pariolinferesfs n ossociafes EakEL - 120 - ®) - ) () - an)
Totol comprehensive income Em2ERARR)
(expenses) for the year 28 - 120 = 83) 9l 1711 (654) - 204128 281,373
Issue of shores Bikh
- conversion of convertile nofes -ERTARSE 1467 4808 - - - - -6 124%
- scrip dividend -HRRE 0 17 - - - - - - - 1756
Transacfion costs on fssue of shores—~ E7IRGZRBHE - (55) - - - - - - - (5)
Dividend poic (nofe 13) BARE (HEhs) - (%) - - - - - BN 071 G
Chonge in associates' equiy RRBELTZRE
afributable fo the Group’s nferests x%%iﬂ%@f@ hE
arising on equity ransacfion DR EES
of the associates £9 - @) = (1.861) = - - - (613) (2991)
At 31t March, 2013 N=F-Z%=A=1-A 9.26 623,949 196,676 (25.087) 908 9,615 231 16,992 166,592 11946 1841088 285,39
Notes: Kt e
(a) The contributed surplus of the Group comprises the difference () AEBZEHBHBOFBERBRE-—NNL_F—A
between the nominal amount of the ordinary share capital issued ZHNHZ AR EANE —FEHB AR ZRAE
by the Company in exchange for the nominal amount of the BZREMBITZARAETBRBRAEDE @ B
share capital of a subsidiary acquired pursuant to a corporate PEANEARARNRRIRA R EEE) MEE 2 ERR
reorganisation on 24th January, 1992 and the credits arising from ZEH REFETEHEAKESREE TR
the changes in the capital and reserves of the Company in capital RZEBEmMBEREHM 2 &5E -
reorganisations and the transfers to the accumulated profits for
offsetting the loss on distribution of assets to shareholders as
approved by the board of directors from time to time.
(o) The reserve on acquisition represents the amount of fair value (o) WiERERE —HBHEQANEE —HNBRAHE
changes shared by the Group in relation to the acquisition of SMERER  ANEERMBLZ A ATEEEZSSE -

addifional interest in a subsidiary by an associate.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e BRITME X

ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

2013 2012
Note — —E——F
HK$’000 HKS 000
ikz3 FETT FEIT
(restated)
(gE=75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation BR3¢ A& A 214,136 434,334
Adjustments for: EARE TS SBEL AR -
Allowance recognised for debtors, EHERZEBERER ek
deposits and prepayments TERFIB 2 s - 96
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 161 88
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BRE L&
equipment ZHE 5,098 10,668
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LEWME  BEREREZ
plant and equipment (U zs) B8 (519) 15
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 9 - (27.504)
Interest income M EUTA (12,567) (11,760)
Interest expenses =R 14,382 18.561
Loss (gain) on: EE (W) -
- change in fair value of —REMEQTFER
investment property 23 (66) (2.000)
- repurchase of convertible notes — B AT AR R R
receivable JE W IR - (13,704)
- conversion options embedded in — Al ARG IR S
convertible notes 2 AR (9.702) 3.468
- investments held for trading —FEEERE - (22)
- convertible notes payable — Al AR R IR FE N SR IR - (16,159)
Net loss on deemed disposal of partial RIEL B E R RE D
interests in associates =D 35,330 3.748
Share of results of associates b RN S (289,581) (437,997)
Operating cash flows before movements RetEEESF T o LCEHED
in working capital Bene (43,328) (38,168)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER A (M) 3 @)
(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits FEWBR TR ~ 7] & R IBN FRIE
and prepayments (3 hn) (589) 1,764
Decrease (increase) in amounts due JE Wi Bk i X R SRIEDR
from associates (1) 968 (4,585)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable JE W & 3K (38 on) Im A (18,000) 16,969
Decrease in investments held for trading FIEEEKRERD - 22
(Decrease) increase in creditors and JRE {51 BR 3K B B 51 B X
accrued expenses O A>) 80 (732) 298
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE AT Bk & R B FRIE R - (526)
Cash used in operations REEBHA AT (61.678) (24,228)
Dividends received from associates U E A RIIRE 41,149 36,406
Interest received EWH 2 7.483 5,623
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXK(BA) B2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE&FH (13.046) 17,801
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e BRI ME X

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

2013 2012
Note —E-= —E—_fF
HKS’000 HKS'000
k3 FET FET
(restated)
(&=&E7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEWK
Acquisition of additional interests in 1y B BS 2 2 &) RASI
associates T (11,611) (40,986)
Acquisition of convertible notes W BE AT IR AR iR (11,085) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment  REWE - BE M&E (1,097) (291)
Additions fo intangible assets REBLEE (337) =
Repayment of note receivable from —E & A Al EE PRI
an associate Fig 50,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  BERRE
and equipment FT1S 70 529 33
Transaction costs on repurchase of A (0] A $R 0% SR A B W SR TE
convertible notes receivable RS - (62)
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries LEMBARFAEHRIEFE ¢ - 114,520
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEHREERE
investments FriS k18 - 1,552
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REXBRBZ
ACTIVITIES ReREE 26,399 74,766
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEER
Dividends paid ERRE (29.631) (15,540)
Interest paid ERHE (8.317) (10,295)
Transaction costs on issue of shares BIIRMODZRBEA (55) =
Addition of bank borrowings HANRITIEK - 50,000
Repayment of loan from a director BER—REZMEX - (46,113)
Repurchase of convertible notes payable B o] AT HR IS SRR B AN SRR - (25,000)
Transaction costs of convertible notes AR ERENRIE 2
payable RBKAR - (279)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEXKBHAZ
ACTIVITIES R&FE (38,003) (47,227)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HEeHEBELEHEER (BL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BnFEE (24.650) 45,340
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AARECHESEE
BROUGHT FORWARD HE 11,684 (33,820)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEERGSE
CHANGES 2 46 164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEBSHRSEE
CARRIED FORWARD HEB (12,920) 11,684
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BeRBSLEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEEIW
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances MHARITIE R IRITET
and cash MR E 39,635 48,440
Bank overdrafts BITHEX (52,555) (36,756)
(12,920) 11,684
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
and the Group’s principal associates are set out in notes 40
and 18, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in 2012

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12 “"Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets”

The Group has applied for the first fime the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 ‘“Investment Property” are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 "Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets” (continued)

The Group measures its investment properties using the
fair value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors reviewed the
Group'’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over fime, and that the presumption set out in the
amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

As a result of the application of the amendments to
HKAS 12, no deferred taxes on changes in fair value was
recognised for the Group’s then investment properties
located in Hong Kong, which were disposed of during the
year ended 31st March, 2012 as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on the disposal of its investment
properties. Previously, the Group recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment properties on the
basis that the entire carrying amounts of the properties were
recovered through use. The applicafion of the amendments
has resulted in the Group’s tax charge and gain on disposal
of subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2012 being
decreased by HK$330,000 and HK$3,541,000, respectively.
Application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has no impact
on deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
properties in Canada as it was considered to be recovered
through disposal throughout the years.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied
retrospectively by the Group and its associates.
Accordingly, prior period adjustments were made on the
Group’s interests in associates and share of results of
the Group’s associates in previous years. Comparative
figures were restated accordingly. The application of the
amendments has resulted in the Group’s share of results
of associates for the years ended 31st March, 2013 and
31st March, 2012 being increased by HK$5,835,000 and
HK$7,201,000, respectively, and hence resulted in the profit
for the years ended 31st March, 2013 and 31st March,
2012 being increased by HK$5,835,000 and HK$7,201,000,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Statements”

(as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 -
2011 Cycle issued in 2012)

“"Presentation of Financial

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012,
the title of which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
- 2011 Cycle. The effective date of these amendments is
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date
(annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retfrospectively, or makes a refrospective restatement
or reclassification to present a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the preceding period
(third statement of financial position). The amendments to
HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is required to present a third
statement of financial position only when the retrospective
application, restatement or reclassification has a material
effect on the information in the third statement of financial
position and that related notes are not required to
accompany the third statement of financial position.

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”
for the first time, which did not have a material effect on
the amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at Tst April, 2011. In accordance with
the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group has not presented a
third statement of financial position as at 1st April, 2011.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 Eé_t_ T—=—F=H=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRAFAIRRKEITEBUBHREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A(EBHBEREER]) (&)
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above changes in I ETRERE T
accounting policy
The effect of the changes in accounting policy described tiiesARESeSERNEE RBEFEEES
above on the results for the current and prior years by ZEE IRIEE 2N EEE2EKRARAZ
line items presented in the consolidated statement of BEFINR
comprehensive income is as follows:
2013 2012
—g2—-= —E——HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Increase in share of results of associates — # (G HE N 7] 4518 1N 5,835 7.201
Decrease in taxation IR R A - 330
Decrease in gain on disposal HEN B QR 2 ek
of subsidiaries - (3.5471)
Increase in profit for the year IR i A N 5,835 3,990
The effect of the above changes in accounting policy Ll ARERRN _—_E——F=
described above on the financial positions of the Group as A=+—HzZBBRAZENMT :
at 31st March, 2012 is as follows:
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2012 2012
R-F—_fF R-F——F
—A=+—H —A=+—-H
(originally stated) Adjustments (restated)
(R31) T (#e=751)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TET TET
Interests in associates, total effect Bt AR MR WEE
on net assets FEZEETE 2,506,835 11,855 2,518,690
Accumulated profits, total effect ZEHEN - ks
on equity ZEERE 1,645,549 11,855 1,657,404
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. KA RKEITEBUNBHREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B ((BEEBHBEREEAR ) (&)
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above changes in e FRE EEEE (F)
accounting policy (continued)
The effect of the above changes in accounting policy tiiestRESESEARERR ST ——F0
described above on the financial positions of the Group as A—HBZ2HBERAEEMT :
at 1st April, 2011 is as follows:
As at As at
1st April, 1st April,
2011 2011
R-T——%F R-T——%F
MmA—A mA—A
(originally stated) Adjustments (restated)
(FR31) T € -27))
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
T#ET T TET
Inferests in associates B N R 2,022,646 4,654 2,027,300
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIESE (38,457) 3,211 (35,246)
Total effect on net assets HEEFEZEETE 1,984,189 7.865 1,992,054
Accumulated profits, total effect Eitmf] - HiEgEmz
on equity EHE 1,049,047 7,865 1,056,912
Impact on basic earnings per share: HERERRNzZE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK cenfts HK cents
A BN
Basic earnings per share KRB FREAR
before adjustments 2H| 26.38 55.38
Adjustments arising from EEMBE B Gt ERIE 1258
change in accounting policy Zf SIFTESE 2 &FTIE
in relation to the applicaton & FE MR E YR ELET IR
of amendments to HKAS 12 {EH 2 %
in respect of deferred taxes
on investment properties 0.74 0.52
Reporting basic earnings T2« BIRER
per share & A 27.12 55.90
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB wm KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. AT RKZEBIEBUHBREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al((ERAMBEHREED]) (&)
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above changes in e R FRE S EEE (F)
accounting policy (continued)

Impact on diluted earnings per share: HERESEN 22
2013 2012
—E—= —E——HF
HK cenfts HK cents
Al il
Diluted earnings per share KRR AREE
before adjustments el 13.01 35.05
Adjustments arising from AN E AT LR E125%
change in accounting policy ZAERTFTE £ 2 @ FTEUR
in relation to the application of FE MR EYERLETIE
amendments to HKAS 12 Ve 2 FA%
in respect of deferred taxes on
investment properties 0.46 0.32
Reporting diluted earnings per share Fr2%m e BREERT 13.47 35.37
The Group has not early applied the following new and ANEFI EIZBEELQN T2 B MM S AERR
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ZHEI S RIEE] 2 BB KR 2R
effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EBEHL EBI RS AR
2009 - 2011 Cycle, except R 7 &5 R-ZTEENESR
for the amendments HKAS 1! —E——FFEH
FEME (FEE
HEREVH 2 BE]
BRSM)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetfting Financial EB IR AR WE-IEEREE
Assets and Financial F79 2 EFT kARG E
Liabilities'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of EB I RE AR EBI RS AR
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition FoE R BB S O5E 7 08 ) Ak
Disclosures? s LR FTH B 5 B 1 RS
ZIEFT
Amendments fo HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial EB IR AR SEMERRK &8
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint Arrangements £105% - FEBE THRBBEREM
and Disclosure of Interests in WEERFEN L TR EDS BEN
Ofther Entities: Transition EB IS5 2R g
Guidance! F125% 2 BF]
Amendments fo HKFRS 10, Investment Entities? EB IR AR AT
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 £105% - BB

WEEAE25 R
B G ERIFE275E
A Hi
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BMFITIREBITIEBHBHREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al (TEBMBREEA ]

("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? S B 78 3 & X2 R ST A
o5
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 78 B 75 3 4 #E A SEFBERER
Statements' 21058
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements! BB RS A& TH
E115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in S B 78 3 & X2 R BENE TR
Other Entities’ F£12% 2R
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement! S B 78 3 & X2 R NEEBEZAE
1358
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits! EESAERFE10% EERM

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

(ZE——F&E:)
B GRTERI 275
(ZE——F&E:)
BE 2RI 285
(ZE——F&IEBE])
55
&

BYMBEHR

REERRRaERR
ZEBE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other =R 5 Eme2mKkAEE
Comprehensive Income* Z1EET Z 25
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Best AR FE3E  EESREER
Financial Liabilities? BT TRLE B
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 55 (BB SRS EAEELEEREZ
Phase of a Surface Mine! RELZEE) KN ER A A
— 2B FE20%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies? 55 (BB B RE B2
REBZE®)
—-REFENR
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 1 R-ZZE—=F—A —HHEERBZFEH
2013. fER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1st January, 2 R-_ZT—NE—H—HXHBFAZ FEH
2014. AR -
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1st January, 3 R-ZE—RAF—A—HXEBRAZFEH
2015. FAER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012. 4 R-ZZE——FtA—HEERBZFEH
B
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. KA REETEBUBHREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A([BFEEMBHREER]) (&)

("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” EHEEIFEER Eogk [ T A/
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for EEMERELEIFFE (R _ZBEZENLEE
the classification and measurement of financial assefts. {Zﬁ) SlECRHEENERAEZTFHRE B
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the BB S A MR FE SR (B —TFELER])
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and

E%é@ﬁmg1§%*ﬁﬁu+5&xﬁﬁﬁ u/uZ%ﬁ

scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

63

for derecognition. TE °
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: EEMBRELERFFR 2 T EH T -
0 All recognised financial assets that are within the . EBLTHERFER S T A : ER

Rt |SENAZMEERRESRME
EERHBERBHKAXAFEMEE
=g t/\ﬁiqﬂlﬁxclﬂfﬁ(ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ o
EBRAANMFHE  REOHEeREE
?%'rzli/ﬁ&ﬁﬁi%fh‘izﬁiZﬂgﬁ R &
BIRE  —MRREZGTHRIREHEX
R E - IBEHEMERIRE RiEmER
BHURERGAHARRATEEAE -
BEAN - R IR E B B T 3R E ERIFE5 -
EREAMEL TR THE 2 E % - RNEM
2EBWAFZ2IERRE (WIEFHIEER
B)ATEECERES i —RER
B ARIBE PR -

METE2EETERATFEERERIEZS
BEEMS  BESBWBHRELELSE

OSRARTE  BRIENEMEEKRAF 275
BEZEFEERRKRE  BoEHNES
REASNBASEL  SRRAEZ
EERRSLEMIIBEHEBEATFEE
SEZEHINEMEERAPER -
ﬁﬂEEZFEH 2| B2 A EEE
BEETERBEFTET S - RIES
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¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 "Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC) - Int 12 "Consolidation
- Special Purpose Entities” will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only
one basis for consolidation, that is, confrol. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor's refurns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 fo deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures”.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) - Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers” will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In confrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i % 64

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

2.

XA REBITEBMBREE
RI(TERBABREER L) ()

EEBUBHEEREIR M T A (E)

ERUBREERNERN_ZE—HF—A
—BAREERBZFEREER A& TIR
B -

E=EY ARRABEVBREERE
555 A %Tzlisﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁﬁféi# CERELS
jqa/g

RARBEZSMEEMS @ AR K
Al B BEEERHAEMFT L TAIT -

ERGEEHE 4L HELARE
BEZHaTRAEETER

RZZE——FNA @ B 7 —4ERAIBEERE
BME - AELH  BEARRHIFE &
B BEESUEHRELENFE 105 - HEY
TR AERIFE 115 E/%HMM&%@EE'J%W
9 BB G ERFER(ZE——FEE

) REBGENE2RE (ZFT——FK
{EET) °
HHIBARZ EEZERMT o

EAPBEREELF105EBA B EBS ST
ERF275 (R ARBYMIERER | PR
AT BRE c BB (EBRELZES) -
ZEE12RGARE - HFHENEEIBR
EB RS XER 1058 4 % B By -
BRIBEEBHEHREERFEI05  HREHRER
B—E2ER - BEHIE o oD - BB IR
LR F10RBIEEIEHESRERE Z =@
%(@%@&ﬁ%Z%ﬂ(mlE%ﬁw
& & FTER 2 B B sk A1) 3k 0% B [8] 3R K (c)
B EEEGERENUTERLED
ﬁoé%%ﬁﬁ%&% FI0RE IMAFEE 2
HEIIARIBEH IS

EAPEREELFNREAR TEBSHE
BIENNHm I REECEZER] - BF ﬁﬂk
¥&%£E'J%115JTJEE¥ZZDHH¢FWE&LAL
%IJZ BTN - %.f,%(ﬂ%%%iés\
—REFI1R[AREHNEE - KELZ
3%%&%%5@.&%%&%&%&% F115%
A H BB AR EGE o IRIBDE B SRS %R

FN - BRLEFZHARA LA EDRE
ZED  OREERAELH TR ZHEN KM

&% o MR EA%/% ATERIFEIVHR T
HKE-FaERH  KFAE %‘Jaaa‘%lﬂ@

ﬁélléf?&/\ﬂhﬁ?u ${’E



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (confinued)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have infterests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain fransitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the fransitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013
with earlier application permitted provided that all of these
standards are applied at the same time.

Based on the existing group structure, the application of
these five standards is not expected to have a significant
impact on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January, 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The directors anticipate that the application
of the new standard may affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1
Comprehensive Income”

“Presentation of Items of Other

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentatfion of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income” intfroduce new terminology for
the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to
be grouped info two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis - the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2012. The presentation of
items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in future
accounting periods.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # &

¥ 5B ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the ‘“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as tfo obtain benefits
from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date
of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group fransactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (confinued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, and (ii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting
difference being recognised as a gain or loss in profit or
loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary
are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
accumulated profits as specified by applicable HKFRSs).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than land and
buildings, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is tfransferred to accumulated profits.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost or
fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the assetf, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly aftributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognifion
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operatfing policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable fo the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

When the Group fransacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of inferests in the associate that are not related
to the Group’s interests.

Acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates

On acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of that associate attributable fo the additional
interests obtained is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities attributable to the
addifional interests obtained over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests in
associates

On disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests
in associates without losing significant influence, the
difference between the carrying values of the underlying
assets and liabilities attributable to the interests disposed
of, or deemed to be disposed of and the consideration
received, if any, is credited or charged to the profit or loss
as gain/loss on disposal or deemed disposal of interests
in associates. In addition, the Group shall reclassify to
profit or loss in relation to the partial interests disposed
of a proportionate amount of the gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effective
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intfangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (confinued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL have two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or
it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instfruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

0 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes interest but excludes dividend earned on the
financial assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including note receivable from an
associate, debtors, amounts due from associates, loans
receivable, debt portion of convertible notes, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Convertible notes held by the Group are separately
presented as a debt portion and conversion option
embedded in convertible notes. On iniftial recognition,
the debt portion represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the fair value of the
embedded conversion option. The debt portion is classified
as loans and receivables and is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, note receivable from
an associate, amounts due from associates and loans
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a balance aforesaid is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group enfity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity interest in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group affer deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised atf the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
intferest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Convertible notes payable

Convertible notes payable issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (confinued)
Convertible notes payable (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes payable and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the convertible notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes payable is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be released
to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes payable are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability porfion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes payable using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and bank
overdrafts) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are deemed as financial assets held for trading. Such
derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contfracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed
as held for tfrading when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the

lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the first-in, first-out method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried aft a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is freated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is tfreated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Sales of securities are recognised on a trade-date basis
when contracts are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group'’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settflement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated intfo the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of confrol over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred fax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of faxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utfilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred ftax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetfs is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assetfs for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined conftribution retirement benefit plans/
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised

as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
constfruction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets unfil such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their infended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EREF AT RAE &)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
Interests in associates BENTRES
The Group's interests in associates are carried at share AREBRE S QA 2R T AD1h B S
of net assets of associates together with goodwill which NEEEFEMWETESEESEE - E/\
arose on their acquisition. As at 31st March, 2013, the —TE—=FE=ZHB=+—H AEEREZ
carrying value of the Group’s interests in certain listed NAlZHEZZEOEBEANERBEFE 2
associates in Hong Kong exceeded the market value of the T {E 491,972,000,000& ¢ (— & — — 4 :
Group’s holding therein by an amount of approximately 1,870,000,00087T) - EIEEBE T (HAEH
HK$1,972 million (2012: HK$1,870 million). Management has REE ARz KO L£%E - G R
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s interest in ERAREHEETERRZERNBE M2
associates. This assessment involves significant assumptions NEFB R ERZ  AEIRSBRSEBET
about future events and market conditions that the amount [A
can be realised may be different as projected if and when
the Group is to dispose this interest.
For acquisition of additional interests in associates, the TUEEREINER E A RIEZS T = - KBS REIME
gain arising on the acquisition of additional interests Fﬁ&iqyﬁn)}&qﬂzﬁﬁgﬁﬁ\\%/\n E]T;&;%‘\J
is calculated using fair value information of the net BENBGEFHE ATTEERE » WNE
identifiable assets and liabilities at the date the additional WHER - NEBREENAE /%EEZQEF{?‘;@
interests are acquired and is recognised in profit or loss. BES REENRI A BRI EERBEERE
The fair value information of the net identifiable assets and ZIEEZEABE -
liabilities involves significant assumptions about valuation of
the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates.
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KARSHBEHN
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable AR EERAINREZR 72 L EIKTR
from outside customers for the year and includes gain on B 2R EEHEFEEERE 2N - K
disposal of investments held for trading. An analysis of the EBAFEWAZONAT :
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Interest income EWA 12,567 11,760
Property rental income IELER A ON 1,089 3,087
Management and other related EIENAEMBREIRG
service income A 3,828 3,895
Dividend income on available-for-sale AHEERE RS
investments A - 611
Gain on disposal of investments held PEREERREZ
for trading e - 22
Others H it 314 173
17,798 19,548
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # &

¥ 5B ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 Eé_—z:_ =3

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker, being the
Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment are as
follows:

Finance - loan financing services

investment in investments such as
convertible notes issued by
the associates

Long-term investment

Other investment - investment in available-for-sale
investments and trading of
securities

Others - leasing of investment property,

leasing of motor vehicles and
management services

Information regarding the above operating segments,

which are also reportable segments of the Group, is
reported below.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o=

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDIER (&)

(continued)
Segment information (confinued) SEER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LT AR EEIRQL R 2EA 2 S > U
results by operating and reportable segment: AR EEDH :
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 BE-—S—=-F=-A=+—HILEE
Long-term Other Segment
Finance investment investment Others total  Eliminations  Consolidated
g RERE At E At kb ik 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FiEx FEx FiEx FiEx Tz Tz tEx
SEGMENT REVENUE BB
External sales HIMAE 5,386 7,155 - 5,257 17,798 - 17,798
Infer-segment soles AHEHE 1,794 - - - 1,794 (1.794) -
Total &t 7.180 7,155 - 5,257 19.592 (1.794) 17,798
RESULT EL |
Segment result PEEE 7,088 16,645 - 87 23,820 - 23,820
Central administration costs R R{THAA (49.553)
Finance costs BBRA (14,382)
Net loss on deemed disposal B HEBE A
of partial interests BrER FE
in associates e (35,330)
Share of results of associates  HEBENAIEE
- share of results o (i 257,178
- gain on acquisitions of —RBIEE AR
addifional interests Eazliz
in associates 32,403
Profit before taxation BHtAE7 214,136
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB wm KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (contfinued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (restated)

5. KARDHESR (&)

DEER(E)
BE_T——_F=A=+—HILFE

(&E5))
Long-term Other Segment
Finance investment investment Others total  Eliminations  Consolidated
HE "R Bt & Bt P EbEE i ey
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
THET TET THET TET TAT TAT TET
SEGMENT REVENUE AHRA
External sales HoMEE 3,435 8,188 633 7,292 19,548 - 19,548
Infer-segment sales DEEEE 1,762 - - 1,888 3,650 (3,650) -
Total @5t 5,197 8,188 633 9,180 23,198 (3,650) 19,548
RESULT Ed
Segment result PEEE 4,979 18,333 613 12,580 36,505 - 36,505
Central administration costs RRATHA (53,211
Finance cosfs SRR (18.561)
Gain on disposal of HENBAR W
subsidiaries (Nofe) Hizz) 19,253
Netloss on deemed disposal R {ELEBERT
of partial interests HrEm R
in associates F5 (3,748)
Gain on convertible nofes TAREEER R
payable FiEle 16,159
Share of resulfs of associates  BABENAEE
- share of resuls -Bih#E 115,534
- gain on deemed PO
acaquisifion and acauisitions NG Sl 6
of additional interests
in associates 322,463
Profit before faxation BRtATER 434,334
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDEESR &)
(continued)
Segment information (continued) SEER (&)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rate or DEEEE IR BETMEIIRE A RTE LR
at terms determined and agreed by both parties. Z ISR UE o
Segment result represents the result of each segment DEREEMEE R S E . NS AR LT
without allocation of central administration costs, including BN (BIEESEHM) - BB A - HEH
directors’ salaries, finance costs, gain on disposal of BArlzWzs - ok EEA TR 2 s
subsidiaries, gain on convertible notes payable and items REREE A NT s HESEB2IER -
related to interests in associates.
During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the chief HE—_ET—=%=A=+—HIFEE -
operating decision maker re-designated the allocation EEREAEH DI AE TEKAAGE ‘4|3
basis of certain expenses which originally included in Y BAEEREAEEERRPRERIL
finance segment to central administration costs since the HARRITHAR -t - BE—ZT——F
related resources were centrally utilised starting from the A=+ HIFEEEMEN 2R 2ER
current year. As a result, the information reported under IME FEY  UNREAREEZEZ2HHR -
finance segment for the year 31st March, 2012 was also
restated to conform to current year’s presentation.
Note: H1:E -
Reconciliation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z WS 2 SR
2012
—Z——F
HK$ 000
TET
(restated)
(FEE5)
Others segment HAth o 8,251
Unallocated ROBES 19,253
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries as shown in RAEEE H&A%FWJZ
the consolidated statement of o S
comprehensive income Wz 27,504
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5. KARDHESR (&)

Segment assets and liabilities

THMEERAR

As at 31st March, 2013 NR—_E—=%=H=+—H

Long-term Other Segment

Finance investment investment Others total  Unallocated Total
BE RERE HRE Rt AHEH KA aa
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FET

SEGMENT ASSETS ATHEE
Segment assets PHEE 80,479 73,042 16 23,036 176,573 - 176,573
Inferests in associates BeENAER - - - - - 2,785,380 2,785,380
Unallocated corporate assets AP ZCEEE - - - - - 51,779 51,779
Total assefs BEE 80,479 73,042 16 23,036 176,573 2,837,159 3,013,732

As at 31st March, 2012 (restated) N-E——F=FA=+—H((K&H5|)
Long-term Other Segment

Finance investment investment Others total Unallocated Total
BE REKRE HitE 1t a4ast RAE g4
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
FEx FEx FEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FE7

SEGMENT ASSETS THEE
Segment ossets NHEE 112,430 74,478 15 23,240 210,163 = 210,163
Inferests in associates ﬁ%ﬂ Gl3 - - - - - 2,518,690 2,518,690
Unallocated corporate assets KRR Z N EEE - - - - = 65,030 65,030
Total assets BEE 112,430 74,478 15 23,240 210,163 2,583,720 2,793,883

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments:

REEEDMRBRES DR OEER :

. all assets are allocated to operating segment other

MEEECHREARENR T

than interests in associates, intangible assets, short-
ferm bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
property, plant and equipment, debfors and
prepayments and amounts due from associates.

no segment liabilities information is provided as no
such information is regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker of the Company on making
decision for resources allocation and performance

assessment.

Interest income was allocated to segments, however the
related short-term bank deposits and bank balances are
not reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
as part of segment assetfs. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s chief operating decision makers for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IWARDEER (&)

(continued)
Other information HiE R
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 BE-ZE—=F=A=+—HLHEE
Long-term Other
Finance  investiment  investment Others Total
BE REKE Hit iz & 2t @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure FENBEERER
of segment result: LA
Interest income FIEBA 5,386 7,155 - 26 12,567
Gain on: MTEE WG
- conversion options embedded ~-RREENT
in convertible notes aliged - 9,702 - - 9,702
- change in fair value of -RENENTEE
investment property 2% - - - 66 66
For the year ended 31st March, 2012 HE_Z——F=A=1+—HILFE
Long-term Other
Finance  investment  investment Others Total
BE REKRE Htt R & Hitr @t
HKS$' 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of T E D S EERK AT
segment result: ZHE
Interest income MEKA 3,435 8,188 - 137 11,760
Net (loss) gain on: NTEEZ (BB) e FE -
- conversion options embedded ~ R E R
in convertible notes IR - (3.468) - - (3.468)
- investments held for trading -HIFEEERE - = 22 - 22
- change in fair value of -REMERTEE
investment property 2 - - = 2,000 2,000
- repurchase of convertible notes ~-BEATRREERK
receivable HA - 13,704 - - 13,704
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

5.

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDEESR &)
(continued)
Geographical information ih = & K
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and RNEB Z7EBUREBEBRINEK ©
Canada.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external AREFERBHEINEPHZFZEHF ZIMAELR
customers or counterparties is presented based on the TIRETR S ZMEBNEE Y - AEEIER
locations of fransactions conducted. Information about BEE (BMEARERGIN BRI THIREE
the Group’s non-current assets (other than inferests in IR B 25 z}x%@ﬁﬁ%ﬂgi“ﬂjﬁg* Z
associates) is presented based on the geographical BRI IR E N T i B & 5
locations of the assets. Information about the Group’s
interests in associates is presented based on the places of
listing of the associates.
Carrying amount
Revenue of non-current assets
A FRBEERAE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——-_F ZZB-Z=F Z—ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET T FET TFET
(restated)
(#&5=751)
Hong Kong B 12,874 14,772 2,786,226 2,528,571
Canada MEX 4,924 4,776 30,582 25,677
17,798 19,548 2,816,808 2,554,248

Non-current assets excluded debt portion of convertible
notes, conversion options embedded in convertible notes
and note receivable from an associate.

Information about major customers

During the year, the Group recognised interest income
from the convertible notes issued by an associate (2012:
one) which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group amounted fo HK$7,155,000 (2012: HK$8,188,000).
The interest income is included in the long-term investment
segment.

Major revenue by services and investments

The Group’s major revenue by services and investments was
disclosed in the segment revenue above.

93

FRBDEETBRREABRRERZEERED -

A] R B R AR B o 2 SR A S R — TR B
BES &

TREEEFZEH

REAR AEEGR—H(ZFT——F: —

)& QN RFTEITZ AR EREKREZ
FERAMAREEBRAWABRIO, &5
/7,155,000 70 (=& — —4F : 8,188,000/
To) o MBWRABTARRIRE D BA -

REBBREEZEERA

AR E RS RILE 2 EBRAR L5
AR BT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F E i &



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

6. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TRTAEZKNHEFH
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Net gain (loss) on: Wzs (BH) F8 -
- Conversion options embedded — AR BB 2
in convertible notes g 9,702 (3,468)
- Repurchase of convertible notes — & (0] A] R [ 32 4R E MR IE
receivable (note 19) (FF#E19) - 13,704
- Investments held for trading —FEEEKRE - 22
Dividend income on available-for-sale AHEERECRKRE
investments WA - 611
Gain on convertible notes payable Al 3RS SRR PR SRIB FT 1S W s
(note 26) (P #E26) - 16,159
9,702 27,028

7. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 7. EE-FETHRAEBREEM S
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENSENTEESREIETHRAE 2B
and the chief executive were as follows: s
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Discretionary
Fees benefits contributions bonus Total
FHR RIKEA
e Hip R HE ML HMe
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FEr FET FET
2013 —g-=F
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR 10 3,600 360 4,000 7,970
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna [FxE 10 3,600 360 3,000 6,970
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine BB & 10 1,932 64 2,500 4,506
Chan Fut Yan BREER 10 600 60 - 670
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan R R B 10 1,440 15 2,000 3,465
Chuck, Winston Calptor 2EE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wah FhE 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham RigH 200 - - - 200
Tofal @it 650 11,172 859 11,500 24,181
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB wm KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF
7. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 7. EE - FETHRAEBREEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ()
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (0) ESZME (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme  Discretionary
Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total
MR RAKBER
ne Hit &R ATEIMR BiERA ame
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
FE FET FéET FET FET
2012 —E-CF
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR B 5% 10 3,240 324 2,700 6,274
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna FxE 10 3,240 324 2,550 6,124
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine G Bl 2 10 1,932 61 1,500 3,503
Chan Fut Yan GiEE 10 600 60 - 670
Cheung Hon Kit (Note) RER(H7E) 4 = = = 4
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BB Rk 10 1,080 12 1,500 2,602
Chuck, Winston Calptor BE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wah Tl 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham RE& 200 - - - 200
Total @t 654 10,092 781 8,250 19,777
Note: Refired on 19th August, 2011. Wi -R=T——FNA+NLBEE-
Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna is also the chief executive BAEZEZLNAERRBREEITHAE -
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above EXBEECMESEBREHENEZTHA
include those for services rendered by her as the chief ERMOIRHRE CME -
executive.
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEBME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEEBRUHZSHFAEFR HEZ(ZF
the Group, four (2012: four) were directors and the ——F :O) RARREERFENT
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments BAE  EBe 25 A EXHiE@) -
were included in note (a) above. The emoluments of EBp(ZZE—=F: —fu) ABZMS
the remaining (2012: one) individual was as follows: s
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—=
HKS’000 HKS 000
FAET FET
Salaries and other benefits S K EL fth 42 T 1,536 1,416
Discretionary bonus EI5IEAL 384 236
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTEFETE
contributions K 15 12
1,935 1.664
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

7. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 7. EE - XEfTHABREEMS

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i %

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

Their emoluments were within the band of HK$1,500,001
to HK$2,000,000 for both years.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, neither the chief executive nor any of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

The discretionary bonus is based on the directors’ and
employees’ skills, knowledge and involvement in the
Group’s affairs and determined by reference to the Group’s
performance, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

(&)
(b) EEBM S (&)

RAEFERN  BEz2MEN T
1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 T 2 A °

RER  AEEYERNAURSHASR
(BRER) XNEAMESESREER
FERFMA (HERFMAR) 2855
FERBEREBMLZBEES - thoh
REALEETBITHABREAESH
RAEBE -

BBIRATIENESE MER ZHEE - Bk
SERRBEBHZIEE YBEARFZR
BURTAHFMELERERTRMEE

FINANCE COSTS 8. BIE A
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——fF
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Interest on: FERTLAT A, -
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ERNAFAEHEEZ
within five years RITEN 401 1,882
Convertible notes payable wholly ARAFREHEEZ
repayable within five years CIE L ESE T IV 13,981 15,541
Loan from a director M—BEEEK - 1,138
14,382 18,561

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9th September, 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Top
Precise Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company ("Top Precise”, together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Great Intelligence Limited, collectively referred
to as the "Top Precise Group”), ("Top Precise Agreement”),
and the entire amount of the shareholder’s loan owing by
Top Precise to ITC Development Group Limited (formerly
known as “Hero’'s Way Resources Ltd.”), another wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as at the completion
date to a subsidiary of ITC Properties Group Limited (*ITC
Properties”), an associate of the Group, for an aggregate
consideration of HK$313,000,000 plus the net tangible
asset value ("NTAV”, as defined in the circular dated 26th
October, 2011 issued by the Company, (the “Circular”))
at completion subject to adjustments (see the Circular for
details).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ééi_ =3

9. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Top Precise Group was engaged in the leasing of properties

to the Group and outsiders. The transaction was comple

on 16th November, 2011, on which date, the consideration

was determined as HK$215,670,000 (being HK$313,000,
plus the negative NTAV of HK$97,330,000). Of the
proceeds, HK$100,000,000 should be settled by way of
issue of a 2-year loan note issued by a subsidiary of
Properties (refer to note 20 for details). On the disposa

the Top Precise Group, the property revaluation reserve
of HK$180,920,000, which was recognised as equity, was
reclassified to accumulated profits. According to the Top
Precise Agreement, the Group had given an indemnity
if any, and the affairs and

relating to taxation liabilities,

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

9. HEKB 2R (&)

Top Precise E B EHEMETAEE K
IAANLE - ZRBER =T ——F+—A8
+RNBZTK & B 2R EE A215,670,000
# 7t (B1313,000,000/% 7T 0 & B 2 & & %
897,330,000/ 7C) - MATIS X EF 5 F -

100,000,000/ T2 LA B E 2 — BB A

===

ted

000
net
the

ITC AIFTETT 2 ME BE R EE (FHE R HI5E20)
| of ZHAIN o HiETop Precisefs [E i B 1R

R 2 2 W) 5 {7 15180,920,000% T -
BEEHOBARTER - *ETFTop Precisel?}
&% NEEE FTop Precise EBEEHEH
HyRBEaE(WME) REBEREBRES
EHRERE -

business of Top Precise Group up to the date of disposal to

the purchaser.

The net assets of the Top Precise Group at the datfe of

disposal, being 16th November, 2011, were as follows:

Top PreciselE BN E B (AT ——F
+—ATARB)ZEEFENT :

HK$’ 000
FET
(restated)
(&e&:7))
Consideration received: EAKRE :
Cash received BB 115,670
Note receivable e IR 100,000
215,670
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KERFIEZEER
which control was lost: BEDN:
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB REE 235,097
Investment property KREYE 85,000
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMERR - 5]€ RTBNRUIR 997
Creditors and accrued expenses FESBR A R BRI (827)
Bank borrowings RITER (97.500)
Deferred taxation AR IE (35.751)
Net assets disposed of BEREZEEFRE 187,016
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARZWE :
Consideration received and receivable B R ERRE 215,670
Net assets disposed of EHECEETHE (187,016)
28,654
Less: related transaction cost B HEER SR (1.150)
27,504
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSRAFE
Cash consideration received BB RE 115,670
Less: related transaction cost B AR S (1.150)
114,520
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e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ
10. NET LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF 10.

PARTIAL INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The loss for the year ended 31st March, 2013 was mainly
resulted from the deemed disposal of partial interests
in associates which arose from the dilution effect of
conversion of convertible notes issued by an associate by
parties other than the Group and the distribution of scrip
dividend by an associate to its shareholders while the
Group selected cash dividend and exercise of share options
by outside parties during the year.

The net loss for the year ended 31st March, 2012 was mainly
resulted from the deemed disposal of partial interests
in associates which arose from the net dilution effect of
conversion of convertible notes issued by an associate by
parties other than the Group and the distribution of scrip
dividend by an associate to its shareholders while the
Group selected cash dividend and exercise of share options

by outside parties.

?E%Etﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ%éZEﬁE

BHE_T—="F=-A=+—HILFEZE#R
TEHRIEHEBE AR MR SI2 -
LTI AR B LASN 2 A T — B 5 2 A) 3%
T2 AR AR SR & — B & A B[R E R D
ERBEO (REETVEEREKRE) A
REABINRALITERBEMELE 2 #E
R FEFTEN o

BE—_Z——F=A=+—-BI-FEZEE
FHETEHRIELEHE QAR oERM
SIE T AREB AN Z A L8R — [ B
NAlETZ A BIRER N —E#E QAR
EREDRRERMD (REETEEZERSRK
B) > BANRATITERREMES 2F
B SE T E P o

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BR % A1 & A
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FEIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRA A= 2 $0BR -
at after charging:
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA (BREESHE)
emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMER 28,644 26,798
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIET B K 1,352 1,257
29,996 28,055
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN & 1,589 1,712
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEEEEZ
and equipment e 5,098 10,668
Minimum lease payments under RIS L AED
operating leases in respect ZHEMERE
of rented premises IR 3,269 1,965
Allowance recognised for debtors, FEUERS - §]€ RFERT
deposits and prepayments SIRRHETER - 96
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 161 88
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE KB
and equipment 2Bt - 15
and after crediting: WEETA :
Net foreign exchange gain b e 58 11 59
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE KB
and equipment ZWas 519 =
Rental income under operating leases in MEMEZLERNAS
respect of rented premises, net of WA - B R 8
negligible outgoings &= 1,089 3,087
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

12. TAXATION 12. %18
Taxation represents the deferred tax recognised by the HMIBEANEEBR ZELERIE - BN
Group. Details are set out in note 27. 527 o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as HRASEELEREEA ZEAHAE - &
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong WEBREFEELBBFSHREE -
for both years.
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the AEE 2 RIEHLEE 2 EWRARTYIBREL R
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of m Az HERMT

comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FAET
(restated)
¢ =27
Profit before taxation BR 75 A1 42 ) 214,136 434,334
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%  I&&EBFIEF E16.5%1 8 2 Fi1E 35,332 71,665
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERBHEHR A
for tax purposes 2R 9,922 5,961
Tax effect of income not taxable RS E B AR 2 YA
for tax purposes 2RI E (3.761) (12,158)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZMIEEEB BB 6,296 6,801
Tax effect of share of results of associates (G & AR EBE 7RG 2 (47.781) (72,269)
Taxation for the year REZHIR 8 =
13. DISTRIBUTIONS 13. 2K
2013 2012
—E-= —ET—_F
HKS’000 HKS 000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distributions to  RFERER DK T A QA
owners of the Company during the year: A A ZIRE :
- Final dividend for 2012 - HK3.0 cents — T _FZRHAKRE -
(2012: HK1.0 cent for 2011) per share BR3.0EN (ZT——%F :
—ZE——FR1.0/El) 23,511 7,770
- Interim dividend for 2013 - HK1.0 cent —ZEZFHRERE -
(2012: HK1.0 cent for 2012) per share BRI1.OEW (ZF—Z=%F:
ZZ—FR1.0E) 7.876 7,770
31,387 15,540
Dividends proposed in respect of the REZEZERE :
current year:
- Final dividend for 2013 - HK3.0 cents —ZE—=FZRHARE—
(2012: HK3.0 cents) per share HFR%3.078
ZE-ZF : 3.08) 27,828 23,311
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 ZZ =%

13. DISTRIBUTIONS (continued)

The directors of the Company have resolved to recommend ARARIEEBAEZURES T ERMN
the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share Hﬁﬁ EEEFRARBI NI EHBE@R
for the year ended 31st March, 2013 (2012: HK3.0 cents), B ENB&E_ZT—=F=A=+—HI
which will be payable in cash, with an option to elect FEZARBREFSRIOBIW(ZZE—=F:
scrip dividend of shares, in respect of part or all of such 3.0 RAFRESREMEZ ZZ
dividend. The aggregate amount of the final dividend ——FE AR S48 523,511,000/ 7T -
for 2012 declared and approved during the current year 1B & IR & I 821,755,000 7T M AR B
amounted to HK$23,511,000 representing cash dividend of IR 21,756,000 T (ZE—=F : BERE
HK$21,755,000 and scrip dividend of HK$1,756,000 (2012: 7,770,000 7C) °

cash dividend of HK$7,770,000).

SFEZAS—HLFE
13. 2k (4%)

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8 REA
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RATHEE ANELZERERNEERTTY
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the R\ T EiiEstE
following data:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-—F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FAET
(restated)
(#E5)
Earnings for the year attributable to the REERNENHEE ANELET
owners of the Company for the BUGTESREREF)
purpose of basic earnings per share 214,128 434,334
Effect of dilutive potential shares: BEAEER D 2 HE
Adjustment to the share of result of Z— [ E QR ER
an associate based on BIREF 2B (hEE
dilution of its earnings per share YEH A% (51,773) 7.884
Adjustment of the inferest income on E—EBE R REITE
the convertible notes issued by AT AR 2 F B
an associate YEH A% (7.155) (8.188)
Adjustment of finance costs on AR R IR R IR 2
convertible notes payable B SR AN VE I A& 13,981 15,541
Earnings for the purpose of diluted BUGTESREERF
earnings per share 2 B A 169,181 449,571

Number of shares

RGEHE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
Weighted average number of shares for AU EERERRER 2K
the purpose of basic earnings per share hn#EFE 789,558,877 777,028,676
Effect of dilutive potential shares of B A ESE AR (R ] IR R
convertible notes payable FERtRIB o2& 466,136,986 494,198,543

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BERKE
Plant, Yacht
machinery and Furniture
Land and and office motor and
buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BE -
KRR BER BER
THREF BOERE RE %E BE

HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
TFAT &L FAT TFET FAT

COST OR VALUATION B4 E
At Tst April, 2011 RZZ——4NA—-R 237,003 4,418 36,186 8,784 286,391
Translation adjustments EXAE (199) (18) (30) (40) (287)
Additions NE 70 120 38 63 291
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) &M BAF (fi59) (237,000) - - (5,836) (242.836)
Disposals & - (497) oM (26) (614)
Revaluation increase BhEE 6,930 = = = 6,930
Reclassified as investment BENOBARENE
properties (note 16) (FtsE16) (3,430) - - - (3,430)
At 31st March, 2012 RZZE-——=A=1—H 3,374 4,023 36,103 2,945 46,445
Translation adjustments B 5 % (61 (5) (18) (26) (110
Additions NE - 179 913 5 1,097
Disposals & - (397) (4,396) @n (4,814)
Revaluation increase BhEE 10 = = = 10
At 31st March, 2013 N = 3,323 3,800 32,602 2,903 42,628
Comprising: BiE:
At cost TN - 3,800 32,602 2,903 39,305
At valuation - 2013 BT —=F/fE 3,323 = = - 3,323
3,323 3,800 32,602 2,903 42,628
DEPRECIATION e
At Tst April, 2011 RZZE——FMA—H - 3,609 23,008 8,160 34,867
Translation adjustments i 5B %) (17) (29) (40) (88)
Provided for the year RERERE 4,208 421 5775 264 10,668
Eliminated on disposal of & KB D R R 8
subsidiaries (note 9) (F5E9) (1,903) - - (5.836) (7,739)
Eliminated on disposals 8 I 3 85 - (478) (62) (26) (566)
Reversal on revaluation EfEEER (2,303) - - - (2,303)
At 31st March, 2012 RZZE-——f=A=1—H - 3,535 28,782 2,522 34,839
Translation adjustments B 5 A% M ) (18) (25) (48)
Provided for the year KEEEE 95 298 4,444 261 5,098
Eliminated on disposals 1B R 8 - (388) (4,396) (20) (4,804)
Reversal on revaluation EfFED (94) - - - (94)
At 31st March, 2013 RZE-=$=ZRA=+—H - 3,441 28,812 2,738 34,991
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=4=A=+—H 3,323 359 3,790 165 7,637
At 31st March, 2012 RZE-—$=ZRA=+—H 3,374 488 7,321 423 11,606
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. 3% - BMERRE (#)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the ferm of
buildings the lease, or 20 - 50 years
Plant, machinery and
office equipment 10% - 33'/,%
Yacht and motor vehicles  20% - 33'/,%
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'/,%

On 31st March, 2012, a portion of self-use office premises
has been leased out for rental income. At the date of
tfransfer, 31st March, 2012, the fair values of the freehold
land and building of HK$3,430,000 were transferred to
investment property. The fair value of the property at the
date of transfer and the fair value of the Group’s land and
buildings at 31st March, 2012 and 31st March 2013, have
been arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by RHL Appraisal Ltd. ("RHL"), who is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
was arrived at using the direct comparison method by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.

The carrying value of land and buildings held by the Group
as at the end of the reporting period represented freehold
properties in Canada.

If the land and building had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
of HK$1,119,000 (2012: HK$1,160,000).
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FimE  BERZEEELNERETE -
FERMT :

KAERELTH 3
HELHNMEF FH HAsk20 - 504F

(BmEE)
BE - e
FNES L 10% - 33'/,%
BRERIE 20% - 33'/,%
REAMKE 10% - 33'/,%

RZZFE——F=ZA=+—H " SBHoEHAKEA
BETE FHANKBRBES WA - RERE B
B—=——F#=ZA=1+—H AFEELL
3,430,000 T Z KA X T H RIEFEE
BREREBYE -RN_TE——F=H=+—8
F—ZE—Z=F=ZA=+—8 ' AX&EELTHEK
BF 2 AFEEEKFTTEBRRER AR
(kA7) Rz B 2 B EEER - BAESM
BEmMEges  WAGNGHEBMERED
X BEERMERLER - HETNEEL
F%ﬁﬁiaﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%¥
I'h% %ﬁuaﬁﬁ

AEERBERRAF L REFT 2 REE
EHRMEAKAEXEDE -

W EREFAFERL BRSSREL
B 2SR 25T 3 E LA1,119,00008 7T (Z 2 ——
F 11,160,000 70 ) 5T ARER & BTG R o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. REW =

HKS 000
FET
FAIR VALUE AFEE

At Tst April, 2011 RZE——FHA—H 102,423
Translation adjustments ME H R (550)

Increase in fair value recognised in REZFERZAFEER
profit or loss HHNRE 2,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEMBAR (H:E9) (85,000)

Reclassified from property, plant Y BRERREZEN
and equipment SaRE| 3,430
At 31st March, 2012 R-ZZE——_F=A=+—H 22,303
Translation adjustments PE X A% (403)

Increase in fair value recognised in RiEmP Rz AT EE
profit or loss s IEE] 66
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 21,966

The fair value of the Group's investment property at the end
of the reporting period have been arrived on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by RHL. The valuation
was arrived at using the direct comparison method by

reference to market evidence of transaction prices for

similar properties in the same locations and conditions.

The Group’s investment property represented freehold
property in Canada and was held to earn rental and
for capital appreciation purposes is measured using the

fair value model and is classified and accounted for as It ABR o

investment property.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
HKs 000
TET
cosT B
At Tst April, 2011 and RZE—FWOA—HBHK
31st March, 2012 —T——F=A=+—H 2,931

Additions NE 337
At 31st March, 2013 R_F—=F=A=+—H 3,268
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERTE
At 1st April, 2011 RZZE——FHHA—H (1.194)
Provided for the year N A (88)
At 31st March, 2012 RZTE——F=A=+—H (1,282)
Provided for the year NEFLEME aen
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H (1,443)
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 31st March, 2013 R-B—=f=H=t—H 1,825
At 31st March, 2012 R_F——F=A=+—H 1,649
Intangible assets represent club memberships in Hong Kong B EEZENEERTEARLME ([F
and the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). Other than B )z emesE - B A1,069000% T (=
club memberships of HK$1,069,000 (2012: HK$732,000), T — 4 7320008 TT) v EFRE Y AN
which were acquired with membership periods of 3 fo 11 Bl A3EZRINEIN  Hep B8 A\ TRE
years, the remaining club memberships have indefinite life. Bl -Z2EEHEFEEZ2ERME  WRE
The directors have reviewed the carrying amounts of the EmBBEER  TEAREEE Z2BEH
intangible assets and considered that, under the current EREEE -

market conditions, no impairment loss has been recognised
in profit or loss for both years.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. & NEREH
2013 2012
—g2—= —E——HF
HKS’000 HKS 000
FET FET
(restated)
(&=75))
Share of consolidated net assets BB E DR ZERE
of associates: BEFE :
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 2,778,910 2,517,513
Listed overseas REINET - =
Goodwill S 6,470 1,177
2,785,380 2,518,690
Market value of listed securities: EmESME
Hong Kong B 813,146 648,493
Overseas gl 153,881 312,446
967,027 960,939
Notes: Bat -

(a) Particulars of the Group'’s principal associates at 31st March,

() AEEXTZEHERAR_ZT—=FR=_F
2013 and 2012 are as follows: :

——F=R=+—HZ#HFEBQOT :

Percentage of

Place of Principal issued share
Place incorporation/  place of capital held indirectly
Name of associate Notes of listing registration operations by the Company Principal activities
RIS/ IEEE AN EREARS
BeLTER Wiz L b e BRIREEDE IEXRB
2013 2012
ZE-=fF —%-C-F
% %
ITC Properties 0] Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 31.31 3787 Investment holding in companies
EEE 3 BRE h engaged in business of property
development and investment in
Macau, the PRC and Hong Kong,
golf resort and leisure operations in
the PRC, securities investments and
the provision of loan financing
services
REBRRER  PEREELE
NEERRRERE RERE
REXRERNRBRES
FARE  URREEHRE
TRz Rl
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. & NTER (&)
Notes: (continued) Hist : (&)
(a) Particulars of the Group'’s principal associates at 31st March, () AEEFEBRERANR_ZT—=FK=_F
2013 and 2012 are as follows: (continued) ——F=A=1+—H2Z#HBWOT : (&)

Percentage of

Place of Principal issued share
Place incorporation/  place of capital held indirectly
Name of associate Notes of listing registration operations by the Company Principal activities
HIs%/ IREE AL EREARS
BELRER Wiz Lrip S i BRTREASL IEXB
2013 2012
ZB-ZF —F--F%
% %
PYI Corporation Limifed (i) Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 26.81 2662 Investment holding in companies
(P i BRE 3 engaged in port and infrastructure
RESERRAA development and investment, and
(IRZ)) the operation of ports and logistics
facilities, land and property
development and investment
associated with ports and
infrastructure development and
provision of comprehensive
engineering and property-related
services
REERAEEO RERRRERE -
BORMRRBLEE
EENRERERABM LA
FERERRE- k&i@lﬁ&
NERBERE 2 DA
Rosedale Hotel Holdings (iil) Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 29.76 29.76  Investment holding in companies
Limited (‘Rosedale’) BF BRE i engaged in hotel investments and
HEBEARBEBAT management in the PRC and Hong
(E)) Kong and also frading of securities
REERR T &%ﬂ%%«%/@f&&é&
ERAREHEE AR
Burcon NutraScience Canada, Canada Canada 20.88 2102 Investment holding in company
Corporation (*Burcon”) United States  MIEA nex engaged in the development of
and Germany commercial plant profein
JIIEYNES &ﬁ@ﬁxﬁé#&%%’é‘%?&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
RizE L3/ AN
The above table lists the associates of the Group which in the ERINEHE 2 AEEEE QT - DARRES
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected RAEFTEFEAEBMAFEEENBRAN
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the EEEEFEEABMZAR - ARAES
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates R FFEREMBE AR EERRREBRIT
would in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in o
particulars of excessive length.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. BENTER (&)
Hiat - (%)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st March, () AEEFEBRERAR_ZT—=FK_%

2013 and 2012 are as follows: (confinued)

——F=ZA=+t—

AZEBWT : (&)

(i) On 28th November, 2011, ITC Properties announced tfo i) EHEHERZ-Z——F+—A=+N
propose an offer to repurchase up to 260,000,000 of its B A4 R H [0 B H & %260,000,000
shares, representing approximately 46.02% of the entire BN z2EZ HERE I 2BTAR
issued share capital of ITC Properties (the “ITC Properties TR #4946.02% ([ 122 % 2= I 15 B B8 2
Share Repurchase Offer”). The Group had undertaken )  c NEBED mEEMERE  ®
to ITC Properties that they would not accept the ITC ETeETEEMEZRMOEE:S
Properties Share Repurchase Offer and certain other EETEMEAZ GFBERARARBHA
undertakings (see announcement dated 28th November, —E——F+—A=+NHZAM)
2011 issued by the Company for details).
Upon completion of the ITC Properties Share Repurchase R-E——F - A EEMERS
Offer in February 2012, ITC Properties repurchased 34.86% CfEEH% EotELQBEED 2T
of its issued share capital and the Group’s interest in H§$234 86% + 1M 2N £ B A 12 i B
ITC Properties increased by 13.22%. The resulting gain of ZHETIENNB.22% c RELZE = F
HK$101 million, determined as the amount of the increase F=A=+—HItFEERN FIELZ
in fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities 101,000,000/ T Y 35 @ i AN E B =
attributable to the Group’s interests in ITC Properties at #ﬁﬂ?z% wEEZAEZNEERA
the date of the completion of the ITC Properties Share B REEERMELNEZSETKS
Repurchase Offer, was recognised in the profit or loss 2 :Ffj‘ﬂﬁigjjuﬁ%ﬁ BB
during the year ended 31st March, 2012. R e
During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Group BE_ZT—=F=-A=+—HLHF
converted ITC Properties Notes with a principal amount B ANEBEDIRER22B T2 HBARE
of HK$26,500,000 into approximately 12 million shares in N4 4 58 /526,500,0005% TT 2 = FF 4
ITC Properties at a conversion price of HK$2.2 per share. EZEEN A4912,000,00008 E e E
A gain on acquisition of the additional interest in ITC Rty - BE EEIMERE AR 2 W
Properties of HK$21 million was recognised as a result 21,000,000/ 7t 2 PN E MRS E I8 28 P i
of the conversion in the profit or loss (see note 19 for R (FBRMWF9) -
details).

(i) A writ of summons was served on 28th July, 2011 upon @iy —mEASHKR=ZZFT——F+tA

Louis XlII Holdings Limited (“Louis XIII”, formerly known as
“Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited”), a then subsidiary
of PYl, and two of its subsidiaries claiming for, amongst
others, damages in a sum of approximately RMB780
million (of which the portion attributable to the Group’s
interest is approximately RMB130 million according to
the effective interest held by the Group in Louis Xl at
31st March, 2012) related to a property development
project in the PRC. It was stated in the writ of summons
that Louis Xlll and two of its subsidiaries were alleged to
be in breach of certain terms contained in an alleged
oral agreement (which is denied by Louis Xl and its
subsidiaries). Taken into consideration of a legal opinion,
Louis Xl was of the view that Louis Xlll and two of its
subsidiaries would put up a respectable defence against
the alleged claim and that it was probable that there
would not be material adverse impact on the financial
position of PYl at 31st March, 2012. Louis Xlll has ceased
to be a subsidiary of PYl during the year ended 31st
March, 2013.

107

ZtNBREES T =SBERAA
(B +=](AIBREEZXEEAR
NCIDIN “ﬁ%ﬁ%ZWE@ED&E
MENB AR i—BARTFRZY
%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ$%( ¢ﬁ%)®AE%
780,000,0007T 2 8 k (I R AN £ B R
—E-_FZ AT HAEAEKS
+ ZERED  EPAEE#H LY
o #75 AR #130,000,0007T) ° :ZfE
ﬂ%#%%%%+z&ﬁﬁ%%%@
ﬂé&*ﬁ%%%ZDﬁ%%W%%
AR (R S+ = REMB AR
R) o WEEKEERE %%+fw
B BKSHT=-HEMBEKEQRYEZ
BEAERMEERS YRATSYH
RER-_ZT——F=A=+—8B2H
BARREREMBEBRATHNEE - K5
+=REBE-_ET—=%=A=+—8
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st March,
2013 and 2012 are as follows: (confinued)

(i

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i %

(continued)

During the year, the Group acquired from the open
market an aggregate of approximately 13.4 million shares
of PYI, representing approximately 0.3% equity interest
in PYl, for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$2.3
million. As a result of the acquisition, a gain of HK$11
million, determined by comparing the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of PYl on the dates of
acquisition aftributable to the additional interest acquired
by the Group with the cost of acquisition of the additional
interest, was recognised in the profit or loss.

Rosedale is a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and its financial year end is 31st December. As
such, the Group has equity accounted for this associate
using published financial information of Rosedale. The
Group has used the consolidated financial statements
of Rosedale for the financial year ended 31st December,
2012 in applying the equity method of accounting in
respect of the interests in the equity shares of Rosedale
held by the Group. Hence, the Group’s share of net
assets and interests of Rosedale at 31st March, 2013 is
calculated based on the net assets of Rosedale at 31st
December, 2012 and the results up to 31st December,
2012, respectively. There were no significant transactions
occurred between 31st December, 2012 and 31st March,
2013.

During the year ended 31st March, 2012, the Group
acquired from the open market an aggregate
of approximately 91.6 million shares of Rosedale,
representing approximately 13.94% equity interest in
Rosedale, for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$41
million. As a result of the acquisition, a gain of HK$221
million, determined by comparing the fair value of the
identifiable assefs and liabilities of Rosedale on the
dates of acquisition aftributable to the additional interest
acquired by the Group with the cost of acquisition of the
additional interest, was recognised in the profit or loss.
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AREBEERLE RN _TE—ZFR_F
——F=A=+—HZ#HEBWOT: (&)
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RERN AEBRIAAMESEARS
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I A03% - BMBUKE KE A
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(®)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below:

18. Bt &

DNAEERE (&)
Kzt - (&

(o) AEEBEARZHBEFBENLT :

2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
HK$000 HKS 000
FET FAET
(restated)
(&sE5)
Total assets RAE 18,192,036 19,754,138
Total liabilities BEE (8.008,300) (10,061,177)
Net assets BERE 10,183,736 9,692,961
The Group’s share of net assets AREFE# (B ENRZ
of associates BEFE 2,778,910 2,517,513
Total revenue BBA 6,960,841 5,628,359
Total profit for the year REE R BEE 690,841 888,657
The Group's share of results of AREFE# (B ENRZ
associates for the year FEES 257,178 115,534
(c) During the years ended 31st March, 2013 and 31st March, () REBEZZT—=F=A=+—RAK=Z—=
2012, the directors of the Company have assessed the FZA=+—HIREFERN - EEIF\M%T*’/}
recoverable amounts of interests in associates using value in AESEZEAESR EMESTE A2
use calculation for assessment of impairment on interests in EEERAETZHRER j%ﬁnZﬂ@Z@i
associates listed in Hong Kong as the carrying values of each REEFESN  RBEALMEHEQRE
of the interest in associates are higher than the market values w2 B REETITERERIERAER
of the listed securities and considered the value in use is higher BREHEEE AR ER RAE  WETE
than the carrying value for each of the interest in associates R EEE -
and hence no impairment loss is recognised thereon.
(d) During the year, the Group has discontinued recognition of its (@) RFEA - AEEDKIEHEREEG RS

share of loss of the associate, the amounts of unrecognised
share of the associate, extracted from, the relevant audited
account of the associate, for the year and cumulatively are as
follows:

RE 218 o NEE R BT R MEREG X
BRRzEE (BB AZBERRBEEESE
ZERE) R ¢

2013 2012
—E—-= —Z——F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FETT FET

Unrecognised share of loss of the NEFRERE(GZHE QT
associate for the year Z B8 2,888 3,398

Accumulated unrecognised share of B RERE (B E AT

loss of the associate ZEBE 6,286 3,398
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19. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES 19. TR EBEEBORABERERE
AND CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN B 2 B8R E

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

During the year ended 31st March, 2012, ITC Properties
repurchased the 1% convertible notes (the “ITC Properties
Repurchase”) issued by itself by issuing 3.25% convertible
notes (the "ITC Properties Notes”) with an initial conversion
price of HK$2.2 per share (subject to adjustments), which
was subsequently adjusted to HK$2.102 in August 2012 as a
result of the payment of final dividend by ITC Properties. A
gain of HK$13,704,000 on the repurchase was recognised in
the year ended 31st March, 2012 by the Group in respect of
the acceptance of the ITC Properties Repurchase.

Unless previously converted, ITC Properties shall redeem
the ITC Properties Notes at the redemption amount which
is 105% of the principal amount on the maturity date. The
maturity date of the ITC Properties Notes will be the date
falling 30 months after the date of issue of the ITC Properties
Notes, i.e. 25th November, 2013.

In April 2012, the Group converted the ITC Properties Notes
with a principal amount of HK$26,500,000 into 12,045,454
shares of ITC Properties at the conversion price of HK$2.2
per share and the equity interest held by the Group in ITC
Properties increased by 1.96% as a result of the conversion.
A gain on acquisition of the additional interest in ITC
Properties of HK$21,355,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss, which was determined by comparing the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of ITC Properties on the
date of acquisition attributable to the additional interest
acquired by the Group with the total of the carrying amount
of the debt portion of the ITC Properties Notes and the fair
value of the embedded conversion option on the date of
the conversion.

In August 2012, the Group acquired additional ITC
Properties Notes from an independent third party with a
principal amount of HK$10,500,000 for a consideration of
HK$11,085,000 (including transaction cost).

The Group classified the debt portion of the convertible
notes as loans and receivables and the embedded
conversion option is deemed as held for trading and
recognised at fair value on initial recognition. Upon
conversion by the Group, the amount of additional shares
of ITC Properties acquired would form part of the interests
in an associate and accordingly, the debt portion of
the convertible notes held by the Group., together with
the conversion options embedded in convertible notes
are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

HE-_ZT——#=FA=+—HItEE =%
HEERE R BT 21 E R 2 ([
EEREER])  ZOSPBRERETR22ET
(A] F#A%) 3773.25[ B Al B IR 2248 ([ =43
ERRE])  BrEEFDERERAREM
RZZE——FNABEBRBREAE=2.1028
T AEBEREMEEERLDSE HE
B —F=ZA=t+—HLEFEEERER
Fr 15 U 2513,704,000/%8 7T °

FRIELRID SR - FRINEEA - St E
BB R E (B AN 2% 2105%) f& Bl S i
EZE ERwEZREZIHA B AR
EMEZEEAZE0MAER  BI=F
—=%+—A=-+HAAH-

RZE——FWOA AEEEEAEEHE
26,500,000 T 2 B E Z R IR R E S
f%2.278 JT ¥ # /512,045,4540% 12 £E 3 2= A%
D AR e REBE R EERER
B2 RS T £ FH1.96% o 18 B8 1B 0 i
KB IME 25 2 UK %521,355,00078 7T 2 A 18 25 FE
R B EE EN U B B E AR
REBEZEIMNERN A RANEERBE
ZAFEEREFIMEZR ZEEBOKRE
ERATHERBRENRBEB SR AFEES
T E -

RZE-—ZFNA  XEEUARE
11,085,000/ T (BER S KAN) AIBILE =
T #E B8 R & £ %8 /410,500,000 7T 2 BRI
ERE-

RERERE  AEBERABRRERZER
B BAERREYGRIA - SR
AR RIHIFEEL R A FEERR - RAE
B - EBEREHERIMNND ZHE K
BRNBE QR 2 - Bt NEEARE
AR RE 2 BIRE D E R TR R R IR
BB E RN A MR R A AR
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19.

20.

DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES
AND CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The fair values of the conversion options embedded in
convertible notes on initial recognition and at the end of
the reporting period are determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers not connected with the
Group using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Details
of the method and assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model in the valuation of the conversion
options embedded in convertible notes are as follows:

RECEEBORITRRE
BB (m)

ZE IR IR A 2 H AR B B X R
FRBFERR I AFEERARREENS
EMALEMERE Y BB EGEMER
Black-Scholes 8 B (B R R Arite 17 2 [H1E %
EE 7 ° Black-Scholes 84 & E & = A £ A A
SRR RS 2 R REEEZ AR
BREFBOT -

2013 2012
—F—= —_F—=
ITC Properties Notes BmREMEZE
Adjusted stock price (2012: stock price) FHEERE(ZZT—= AR ME)

(HK$) (B7T) 2.82 2.24
Conversion price (HK$) Bk E (BT) 2.102 2.20
Volatility R 22.00% 29.79%
Dividend yield ZEEX 5.03% 0
Option life (Year(s)) BmiRESS (F) 0.65 1.65
Risk free rate fmE p & 0.099% 0.194%

The effective interest rates of the debt portion of convertible
notes ranged from 15.76% to 18.10% (2012: 15.76%) per
annum.

NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

Note receivable from an associate

As a result of the disposal of the Top Precise Group as
detailed in note 9, the Group received a 2-year loan note
with a principal amount of HK$100,000,000 issued by a
subsidiary of ITC Properties on 16th November, 2011 as part
of the settlement of the consideration on the disposal of
the Top Precise Group. Loan note with principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 was repaid during the current year.

The loan note carries interest at HKD best lending
rate quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (the "Best Lending Rate”) plus 1% per
annum, with effective interest rate of 6% per annum, and
matures on 16th November, 2013.
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20.

IHRREBRBBEEROCERFMEN
F15.76%F18.10% 1 F (=T — — F ¢
15.76%) °

W —EBEARRE EWREE

TR/
W —EBE QTR

S0P FEOFT Ml Top Precise® 2B 2 & - K
EER T ——F+— At BEREET
E—HNBARRITASEME A&t HEA
100,000,000/ T2 EREE - {EA A ER D
& Top Precisel= B 2R fB - RAFA - K
$©$%850,000,0008 T2 EREEE TEE -

ZERRBEDREE LBELSRTERAR
Bz REEEEETERNX ([REEFN
RDMEBZEEFE  BERFNERE -
RZB—=F+—A+BIH-

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E R &



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WKW
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20. NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/ 20. B — BB & DB RIE P W

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (continued) AT FIE (&)
Amounts due from associates FE U B & N Tl 1B
The amounts are unsecured, repayable within one year and ﬁ A NEEE BER—SESREELE
non-interest bearing. The amounts due from associates are o FEWEE A N TIZBAREERIEE  5H
repayable upon request for repayment, neither past due ,TAIEIﬁﬂHﬂ—jz,ﬁHE&, EHE /K B TRECEE ©
nor impaired and have no loan default history.
21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21. ERERR AT € RFEMNNRIE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
Trade debtors FEWE 5 8RR 2,101 850
Other debtors, deposits HEmEWERR - 578
and prepayments RIE IR 2,884 2,338
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIS (1.344) (1.344)
1,540 994
3.641 1,844
Trade debtors arising from leasing of investment property KREMEREERES 2 EWE SR ER
business are payable monthly in advance and the credit BEf MAEBEZREMEKRS ZEFTIRE
terms granted by the Group to other trade debtors normally ZEEH—MRB30HE0H TS - REET
ranged from 30 days to 90 days. For interest receivable, B EWNF ERHEEE -

there are no credit terms granted by the Group.
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21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 2. BRI E RFENKIE (#)

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of frade debtors presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

FEWE ZERF N E R RRER A 2RI
AT

2013 2012
—EB—= —E——HF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FHET FAET

Trade debtors FEWE 5 IR
0 - 30 days 0-30H 2,099 803
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 2 14
61 - 90 days 61 - 90H - 5
Over 90 days @90 H - 28
2,101 850

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. The directors of the Company will
continuously assess the recoverability of the receivables.

As at 31st March, 2013, the entire trade debtors balance
was neither past due nor impaired. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, all trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality
at the end of the reporting period with reference to past
settlement history. As at 31st March, 2012, included in the
Group’s trade debtors balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$28,000 which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is between 91 days to 180 days. No allowance for doubtful
debts of trade debtors was provided during both years.
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=+—HB AEEZEKEZERERELERT
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21.

22.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i %

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21 EWERR AT &€ RFEMNRIE (&)
(continued)
Movement in the allowance for other debtors are as follows: HEWEBE R BEE ST -
2013 2012
—EB—= —E——HF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TFET
Balance at beginning of the year REY 2 417 1.344 1,248
Impairment loss recognised BHERBEEE - 96
Balance at end of the year RERZ 4T 1,344 1,344
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of other HEKER Z RERERBIEFER B BE
debtors were individually impaired debtors with an ZEUBR 48 4517 1,344,000/8 T (& ——
aggregate balance of HK$1,344,000 (2012: HK$1,344,000) 11,344,000 70) C BIEABRERE -
which had been in severe financial difficulties. The Group NEBUTEMRZEEFEEEMEER -
did not hold any collateral over these balances.
LOANS RECEIVABLE 22. EWE MK
2013 2012
—E-= —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET TFET
Unsecured EA 29,898 11,898
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERBESRE (1.898) (1,898)
28,000 10,000

The amounts are unsecured, repayable within one year
and carry interest ranging from Best Lending Rate to Best
Lending Rate plus 1% per annum (2012: Best Lending Rate
per annum) with the range of effective interest rate of 5% to
6% (2012: 5%) per annum.

There is no movement on the allowance for loans receivable
for both years.

Before approving any loans fo new borrowers, the Group will
assess the potential borrower’s credit quality and defines
credit limits individually. Limits aftributed to borrowers
are reviewed twice a year. The directors will continuously
assess the recoverability of the loans receivable. In the
opinion of the directors, the borrowers have sound financial
background and there has not been a significant change in
credit quality. As a result, the amounts are recoverable.

The allowance for doubtful debts relates to an individually
impaired loan receivable of HK$1,898,000 (2012:
HK$1,898,000) for which the debtor was in severe financial
difficulties. The Group did not hold any collateral over this
balance.
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23.

24.

25.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES

The short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% fo
3.5% (2012: 0.01% to 3.1%) per annum.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors and accrued expenses are frade
creditors of HK$2,613,000 (2012: HK$3,437,000) and their
aged analysis presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

23.

24,

BHRITERRRITER

HHRITERMBITEFUTSBITERF
X B FENT00IEEISE(ZT—=
F001EE3INE)TE -

PR RRA R B R X

JE A< BR 3R K FE 5T 5 2 R B2 $52,613,000/% 7T
(ZZ— 4 3,437,000/ 7T) 2 FERHE F iR
o MESERBRERREZEEZABRZRRD
B UENE

2013 2012
—ZE—-= —E—F
HKS’000 HKS 000
FET FHET

Trade creditors JEE S ER
0 - 30 days 0 -30H 2,601 3,423
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 12 14
2,613 3,437

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit
fimeframe.

BEZFHEERROB - AEEHBESH
R ERRE - AR ARNFIATSHEIA
EERR -

BANK OVERDRAFTS 25. B1TEX
2013 2012
=%-= e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Secured Vg - 3,919
Unsecured i3 52,555 32,837
52,555 36,756

Bank overdrafts carry interest at prevailing market rates
which range from 4.00% to 5.75% (2012: 4.00% to 5.75%) per
annum.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE 26. AT IR BB EKIE
2013 2012
—E—= —_=F=—=
HK$’000 HKS 000
FET FHET
Liability component: BEE
At the beginning of the year REL]) 131,299 161,589
Repurchased during the year REARER - (24,383)
Conversion during the year RERE R (42,436) =
On extension AL A - (14,173)
Interest charge B H 13,981 15,541
Interest paid EARFIR (6.992) (7.275)
At the end of the year RER 95,852 131,299
On 2nd November, 2009, the Company issued 5% convertible N-_ZETNE+—FBA-H A BETEE
notes which were unsecured, at par value of HK$200,000,000 200,000,000/ 7T 2 5/ ] # J% = 4% ([ ] 32 %
(the “Convertible Notes”). Interest was payable semi- ZRg|) o HEUWEEKE . BEEXFEIMAFE -
annually. The Convertible Notes were denominated in Hong AR ERAETEE - WEEERFE AR
Kong dollars and entitled the holders to convert it into %4 5 % (B B 3%0.507%8 7T (7] F A R #E58E
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the FE) (AR FAEA0.308T) R EE
period commencing on and including the 7th day after the BTBHEELH (BFEZE) £ BIKRE
date of issue of the Convertible Notes up to and including ERHAE-—ZET——®+— /8 —HitBH (8
the date which was 7 days prior to the maturity date on 2nd HiZA) HEER g 2 EBR ARG 2 EE
November, 2011 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.50 AZP& D - BRI EE R EER . FEER
per share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments), which was —E——F+— A _HRHEAEEAL L
subsequently adjusted to HK$0.30. If the Convertible Notes 100%F LA - KRR BRERERIAEESR
had not been converted, they would be redeemed on ANREZERBERER A REEZEE - BEZ
2nd November, 2011 at 100% of the outstanding principal DZERERNREREI1.52E

amount. The Company was entitled to purchase the
Convertible Notes at any fime and any price agreed by the
holders. The effective interest rate of the liability component
was 11.52% per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 2012, the Convertible HE_Z——H=-A=+—HIFER &K
Notes with a principal amount of HK$25,000,000 < < 825,000,000/ 7T 2 AT R IR TH A E
was repurchased at par value, resulting in a gain of EEE - B mE S WS2,265,0000 JT ©

HK$2,265,000.

On 29th September, 2011, the Company extended the R-E——FNA=-+hB  ZXAFEHRT
maturity date of the remaining outstanding Convertible REE BT ZERE (47K 4% 5143,000,000
Notes of an aggregate principal amount of HK$143,000,000 BIL) 2B AR —_E——F+—HAZHIE
for two years from 2nd November, 2011 to 2nd November, EMEFE-Z—=F+—AZHA(FEBR
2013 (see circular dated 14th September, 2011 issued AR —_E——FALA+THHETE A
by the Company for details), resulting in a gain of BK) - B E AU E513,894,00058 7T © AJ PR
HK$13,894,000. All the other terms and conditions of the R MAEMIRRRIGHGIETE - BF&
Convertible Notes remain unchanged. The effective interest IRy 7 BERE R R 512.33%

rate of the liability component is 12.33% per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Convertible HE_Z—=F=-A=+—HIFER &
Notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$44,000,000 7K & < §H44,000,00078 7T 2 Al R = IR T %
were converted into 146,666,662 shares of the Company at AP AE B R0, 3078 JT 1 51 46,666,6620% 2N
the conversion price of HK$0.30 per share. NG v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 =%

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

27.

As at 31st March, 2013, the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Notes is HK$99,000,000
(2012: HK$143,000,000). Among the balance as at 31st
March, 2013, Convertfible Notes with a principal amount of
HK$18,000,000 (2012: nil) were beneficially owned by Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following table summarises the major deferred tax
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

ZF=ZH=1—HIFE

26. TR EBENE

27.

XIE (&)

B’;\:;—:i_ﬂ_wL H- RKEZETHR

}Fz,ﬂiﬁﬁgﬁz%woooooo%m(_
-—-—_¢ 143,000,000/ 7T) ° T—=
FZA=Z+—HZHEFEHR Z’Xif-égﬁ
18,000,000/ 7T (=& — =4 : ) Z Al#2f%

SEHRERE L ERESR -
ELEREARE

RAFARAEFEEHRAZ T BRLEHREA
BEBE) ARBBEESMINMTE

Accelerated
tax Revaluation Tax

depreciation of properties losses Total
MEHIFE BEfiNE HERE EHY
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FAT FAT
At 1st April, 2011 as originally stated “Z——FmA-H(RH) 2,502 37,996 (2,041 38,457
Effect of changes in accounting policy = ﬁﬂz”*“ébz?/a - @321 - @3.211)
At Tst April, 2011 as restated RZZ-——FMA—RA(KEF]) 2,502 34,785 (2.041) 35,246
(Credit) charge to profit or loss )NEE (Ft A) 0k (821) - 821 -
Charge to other comprehensive income REMZEKADR - 1,519 - 1,519
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HERE 2R (o) - (35,751) - (35,751)
At 31st March, 2012 RZE-—£=A=1-H 1,681 553 (1,220) 1,014
(Credit) charge to profit or loss Rz GEA) Mk (495) 8 495 8
Charge to other comprehensive income  REMZER AR - 13 - 13
At 31st March, 2013 —=F=f=1-A 1,186 574 (725) 1,035
At 31st March, 2013, the Group has unused tax losses RZE—=F=A=+—H ' ~EEEEH

of HK$629,925,000 (2012: HK$594,766,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$4,399,000 (2012:
HK$7,398,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$625,526,000
(2012: HK$587,368,000) has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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629,925,000 7T (—F — Z4F : 594,766,000
Y& TT) 2 AR B) F B IE B 18R] B DA 85 oK 2R
w A o AREEE B HAH4,399,0008 T (=
— 4 17,398,000/ 7T) ERIELEFBE
B o B R BT R R s A SRR - i 4
B #4 B T8 E18625,526,0008 T (—FE——
£F : 587,368,000/ JT) Eﬁw B IBEEE ©
TR 75 5 18 n] B IR i 4 &
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2013 E“t_t_ T—=F=HA=1—HIFE
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. |
Number of shares Value
B8 E BE
HKS 000
FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: SREEOVETTZ EEK

Authorised: JERE

At 1st April, 2011, R-T——F@mPA—A8

31st March, 2012 and —E——F=A=+—HEK

31st March, 2013 —E—=F=-A=+—H 102,800,000,000 1,028,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE :
At Tst April, 2011 and RZZE——FHEA—B K

31st March, 2012 —E-—F=A=+—H 777,028,676 7.770
Conversion of the Convertible Notes AR R IR

(Note (a)) (Ktit(a)) 146,666,662 1,467

Issue of shares (Note (b)) BITHRAD (M et (b)) 3,904,762 39

At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 927,600,100 9,276

Notes: Hraz -

(@) 146,666,662 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the (@ RZTE—=FtA+NB - ZT—=F=
conversion of the Convertible Notes with an aggregate AZ+=ZH ZE—=f=A+=H =%
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 on 18th July, 2012, 22nd —=f=A+WmH - ZFE—=F=HA=+H
February, 2013, 13th March, 2013, 14th March, 2013, 20th EZZT—=%F=A=++tH ARraELX&E
March, 2013 and 27th March, 2013, at a conversion price of % §844,000,0007% 7T 2 Al AR R IR IR AR (E
HK$0.30 per share. B R%0.3078 T8 HA T 25 17146,666,66208 T %

E{E0.01B T Z D ©

(b) 3,904,762 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the Company (b) ARARERZZE—=—FhLAZ+NHREER
to the shareholders who had elected to receive scrip dividend REE—T——F=-A=+—HLEFEZX
in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31st March, BARR S UER LA RR X 8. 2 AR SR 82 973,904,762/%
2012 on 26th September, 2012. BRMEE0.01B T 2 RD °

These shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares of ZERMRETEERQAAERFRERNDE

the Company in all respects. BRIZFHN ©
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

29. SHARE OPTIONS 29. B e

The Company terminated the old share optfion scheme
(2002 Scheme”) (which was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed by the then shareholders
of the Company on 16th January, 2002 (as amended on
19th September, 2007)) and adopted a new share option
scheme ("2011 Scheme”) at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 19th August, 2011 (the *Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentive
or reward to eligible persons for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts fo promote the interests of, the Company
while the purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts fo promote the interests of,
the Company and its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity(ies) and its subsidiaries.

The board of directors of the Company may in its absolute
discretion, subject to the terms of the 2002 Scheme, grant
options to, inter alia, employees and directors of the
Company. the controlling shareholder of the Company
and invested entity and their respective subsidiaries,
supplier, advisor, agent, consultant or contractor for the
provision of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any invested entity and its subsidiaries and any vendor,
customer or celebrity of any member of the Group or any
invested entity and its subsidiaries, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to any member of the Group, and any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any invested entity and
its subsidiaries or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries.

The board of directors of the Company may in its absolute
discretion, subject to the terms of the 2011 Scheme, grant
options to, infer alia, employees or executives, including
executive directors of the Company, the conftrolling
shareholder of the Company and any invested entity and
their respective subsidiaries, non-executive directors of
the Company and invested entity and their respective
subsidiaries, supplier, advisor, agent, consultant or
contractor for the provision of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries and any vendor, customer or celebrity of
any member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries or any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
and any invested entity and its subsidiaries.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) B E)

At the time of adoption by the Company of the 2011
Scheme on 19th August, 2011, the aggregate number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options to be granted by the Company under the 2011
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted
by the Company must not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the 2011 Scheme. As at the
date of these consolidated financial statements authorised
for issuance, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Scheme is 77,702,867 shares, which
represented approximately 8% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of these consolidated financial
statements authorised for issuance. Upon termination of the
2002 Scheme, no further share options would be offered
under the 2002 Scheme. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) under the 2011 Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any
eligible person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of further grant shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value exceeding HKS5 million must be approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BREE)

The period within which the options may be exercised under
the 2011 Scheme will be determined by the directors of
the Company at the time of grant. This period must expire
in any event not later than the day falling 10 years affer
the date on which the offer relating to such option is duly
approved by the board of directors. The 2011 Scheme
does not provide for any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Options
may be granted at an initial payment of HK$1.00 for each
acceptance of grant of option(s). The directors of the
Company shall specify a date, being a date not later than
30 days after (i) the date on which the offer of the options is
issued, or (ii) the date on which the conditions for the offer
are satisfied, by which the eligible person must accept the
offer or be deemed to have declined if.

The exercise price of the options will be determined by
the directors of the Company (subject to adjustments
as provided in the rules of the 2011 Scheme) which shall
not be lower than the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer, which must be a business day; and (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’'s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

Subject to early tfermination in accordance with the
provisions of the 2011 Scheme, the 2011 Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing after
the Adoption Date, after which period no further options
shall be granted.

As at 31st March, 2012 and 2013, there were no outfstanding
share options granted by the Company pursuant to the
2002 Scheme and 2011 Scheme. No share options were
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
and prior year.
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to confinue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the convertible notes payable as disclosed
in note 26, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

30. EXE R ERE

AEEEBEEAR - SHEBEAEETET
RS  UEBELEBRESEBRAL
NEHEE ATREALR - NEE 2 BEE
RS EFAR — BT

AEBZEARBREFED (RN
2oz I RBRMNRIE) - MEFRE R
ReFEBRARARRHEAARGER &
P EBEETRA - REHEM R EMEE o

ARREFEMRATEARE - tERRREZ
—80 BEEREEEARARZHREARE
B - AEEARE B MRE RETHK
REZTHEGXBERREGEY - FHEE
BEARRE -

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3l.€@IT A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (o) ERMTESE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss BERAFEER R
(FVTPL) BB TIER
Conversion options embedded in AT AR A 2
convertible notes i 18,634 11,421
Loans and receivables (including BERREKGRIE (81
cash and cash equivalents) RekRELEEHEE) 176,829 227,319
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortised cost BSHpA 153,877 173,925
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€®MIT A%

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) cHEAKEEBEREE

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and
other debtors, loans receivable, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due
from associates, debt portion of convertible notes,
conversion options embedded in convertible notes,
note receivable from an associate, trade and other
creditors, bank overdrafts and convertible notes
payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Market risks
(i) Currency risk

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the Group’s net monetary assets
and advances fo foreign operations within the
Group denominated in currencies other than the
respective functional currencies of the relevant
group entities include HK$23,703,000 (2012:
HK$19,866,000) which denominated in Canadian
dollars ("CAD"). 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

On this basis, there will be a increase/decrease
in post-tax profit by HK$990,000 for the year
(2012: increase/decrease in post-tax profit by
HK$829,000) where CAD strengthens/weakens
against HKD by 5%. Management has closely
monitored foreign exchange exposure to mitigate
the foreign currency risk.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€®M I A%

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(b) cREAKREEBEREE (&)

Market risks (confinued)

5 m ()

(i) Interest rate risk

ORI EI:N A

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate debt element of convertible
notes and fixed-rate convertible notes payable
issued by the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank deposits and balances,
loans receivable, note receivable from an
associate and bank overdrafts which are mainly
arranged at floating rates.

Management has employed a treasury team
to closely monitor interest rate movement and
manage the potential risk. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate change exposure should
the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the Best Lending Rate and
HIBOR arising from the Group’s HKD denominated
loans receivable, note receivable from an
associate and bank overdrafts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period which carried floating market interest rate.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i % 1 24

AEEREEAREREE B ERS
DRAKEETZELENAE
REZ M E S QX FEENERR -

AEBETEAEERHRFBHHNE
ZRITFERRAET  BRER R
B HEB2E QAR BERERRR
TEXMALHREREN KRR

EEECREER/ NMEEYESR
MEREF  WERHEERR - N
£ 8 B A3 8 AR LA KRR o
A EEEIRMNEEAR  TE
RBEREBEHREAMEER -

AEERSREEmREYZH =X
EBRRAK T REE SRR E R
—fiFFm - AEEZHESRENE
EREZETFRAREB BT
FERE TR - IR — R & A R 2%
MRITESEY 2 REZEBER
R N HIBORZ K & o

BREDH

T URRE 2 AT IR R HIR
ZEMTAZMEER (T5HTEE
ME)EBE - A M HRERRE
HRZHHBEERABNEZFLZ
EREAM AR R o 38 R K0 EE T,
TREEEBEABERNIRSH
KRR ER  WRKRERE
BHMNRSE AR E) < 5 -




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€®MIT A%

(b) 2REAKREEEERRE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risks (continued)

45 E (48

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) FIEE L (&)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year will be increased/decreased by
HK$253,000 (2012: post-tax profit for the year will
be increased/decreased by HK$482,000).

Ofher price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
the Group’s conversion options embedded in
convertible notes. Management closely monitors
the exposure to price risk. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on the underlying
equity instruments quoted on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for the embedded conversion options.

The conversion options embedded in convertible
notes held by the Group is required to be
recognised at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss as long as the
convertible notes are outstanding. The fair
value change will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes
in share price volatility of the convertible notes
issuer.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on conversion opfions
embedded in convertible notes set out as below
have been determined based on the exposure to
the change of share price of the convertible notes
issuers at the end of the reporting period with
other variable remained constant.

If the share prices of those convertible notes
issuers are 5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower and all
other variables are held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year will be increased/
decreased by HKS$2,161,000/HKS$2,183,000
(2012: increased/decreased by HK$1,860,000/
HK$1,708,000), as a result of changes in fair value
of conversion option embedded in the convertible
notes.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.EWMIHE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) RIEMEEEERBE (&)

(continued)
Credit risk EEEE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the R-E—=F=A=+—H K&EBE%E
event of the counterparties’ failure to discharge RHGHFREBTEREEEALT - BE
their obligations as at 31st March, 2013 in relation SHOEReBREECEAEERR
to each class of recognised financial assets are =¥ *Aﬁﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬂ%tiﬂzgﬁﬁ B
the amounts stated in the consolidated statement EREEERR  AEEEEECET
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit EEREE - Eﬁﬁﬁt&ﬁfﬂzﬁ*ﬂir‘
risk, management of the Group has determined TERBLE E B AR R SR ERER RS 1 © 55
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring Iy REBERBRERRBZSHER
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to PRE AR AR E R R R Z—Mﬂl@
recover overdue debfs. In addition, the Group reviews R ERBLARREWE 2 FIBEH R E
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and NEREY E =N AT = /N 72?%%
loan debtor and convertible notes receivable at the RAEE 2 FERRE RIEREE -

end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credif risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has significant concentration of credit AEBSESFRKE —HEE QA
risk on note receivable from an associate, loans ZIEWEE - EWER R — F'Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ%’*@j
receivable and convertible notes receivable issued T Al I REEEWFIE - o5l
by an associate, amounting to approximately HK$50 49 /50,000,000 7t - 28, OO0,000?%T_E
million, HK$28 million and HK$53 million, respectively 153,000,000 L (ZF —=F : % 5l
(2012: HK$100 million, HK$10 million and HK$61 /$100,000,000/% 7T * 10,000,000 7T &
million, respectively). As the debtors or issuers of 61,000,000 70) 2 EERK - AR E
the convertible notes have good payment record BASTBRBEEZETARBEER
in the past, the directors of the Company consider FIREEE - AR AR EERAAEEY
that the Group’s credit risk to these counterparties RGEFZEERBRITTER © Rtk A
is not significant. Other than that, the Group has no Sh s REEWEEREF 2EERER -
significant concentration of credit risk.
The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because HRRSEF HEEREEFR 2RIT
the counterparties are banks and other financial LEMSREE  HRSERZEER
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group does not BAR AEERRBESTEEAS
have significant concentration of credit risk on liquid ‘:F'Eﬁﬂﬁ"" °
fund.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€®MIT A%

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) cREAKREEBEREE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management fo
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the ufilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and going concern
of the Group's in light of the Group’s current liabilities
exceed its current assets by approximately HK$32.7
million as at 31st March, 2013. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future,
after taking intfo consideration that there are available
borrowing facilities, the future plan of the Group and
that there are assets available to pledge for obtaining
further banking facilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayable terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€®M I A%

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) cREAKREEBEREE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEELERE (EZ)
Liquidity tables BB F
Total
Weighted undiscounted
average Less than 3 months cash Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years flows amount
g *ERRS
FHNE  HR=MEA =EAZ-%¥ -ERf RELE REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
Al FEn FEn FEn FEn FEx
2013 —E-=%
Non-derivative financial EESR
liabilities 8%
Creditors FEfTER R - 5,470 - - 5,470 5,470
Bank overdraffs RITEY 5.00 52,773 - - 52,773 52,555
Convertible notes payable TEREERENTE 5.00 1,198 99,446 - 100,644 95,852
59,441 99,446 - 158,887 153,877
2012 “E--%
Non-derivative financial EiESR
liabilities 8%
Creditors FEfTBR R = 5,870 = = 5,870 5,870
Bank overdraffs BITEY 5.00 36917 = = 36,917 36,756
Convertible notes payable HEREBENTIE 5.00 1,788 5,363 146,575 153,726 131,299
44,575 5,363 146,575 196,513 173,925

(c) A¥EE

(c) Fair value

rEETREERERABZIAHER
BATHAERE :

The fair value of the Group’s financial assefs and
financial liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of the debt portion of convertible - IMBREREEBORITBREE

notes and the conversion optfions embedded
in convertible notes are deftermined based
on discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instfruments and optfion pricing models,
respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

EMEcBRE A FEEDE
RERBSREDN - DHIERAE
RzZTAFH2EESHELEE
EERABE &

- HpemEEMSRAB (TR
PTETR) ZRFEEDNERAR
EEER - UHBRRSREINS
HEEEF -

BEEZRR  HAVBHRERTIZEHKA
IRz AEBEERMEERERABIR
EEEREZ N FEERE -

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€MIHE &)
(c) Fair value (confinued) (c) RREE(E)

Fair value measurements recognised in the REGEH BN ERERZ A FEEE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIEEUNATFEEFEF NEREZ

instrument that is measured subsequent to initial SRTEZZON  ZEE@ T ARER

recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to T EBEINEENREE  DAFIRESE

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is 34

observable.

- Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived - B AT EEFERBERER
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market mEFHERemEESAGB IR
for identical assets or liabilities. B(RERAE) o

- Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived . B RNFEBEFERER (BRE
from inputs other than quoted prices included 1R BREOREN JTEREE
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or B EEE (BIMER) sifdss (B2
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly BRER)EA

(i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived . F3 A EBEFERE NI IE
from valuation techniques that include inputs WEEEMEHE GErTER Y
for the asset or liability that are not based on MA) ZBEESBEEH ANGHER
observable market data (unobservable inputs). 50

As at 31st March, 2013
R-E-=%=A=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R EPEN SEIR st
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
FHAT FHAT FHAT FHAT

Financial assets at FVTPL ROATFEERBANRES
JRCERMEE
Conversion options embedded in AR E BT
convertible notes IR - - 18,634 18,634
As at 31st March, 2012
RZE——F=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1 otk F3IR fmEt
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL RATFEER BN RES
IRz EMEE
Conversion options embedded in AR R
convertible notes pa g - - 11,421 11,421
There were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in AEERBAFERN  WERF1HRE
the current and prior years. B2 o [E e HE o
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.€MIAE &)
(c) Fair value (continued) (c) AFEEE)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEENFEIRAFEETENL R

financial asset

Conversion options

embedded in
convertible notes
ARBREE
Bt 75 2 H IR R
HKS'000
TET
At 1st April, 2011 RZZE——FMHA—H -
On initial recognition BIRFER 14,889
Loss for the year recognised RBEPERZANEE
in profit or loss (Note) B8 (W) (3.468)
At 31st March, 2012 RZZE——F=A=+—8H 11,421
On initial recognition BIRER 1,810
Conversion L) (4,299)
Gain for the year recognised PR ERZANFE
in profit or loss e 9,702
At 31st March, 2013 WZE—=%F=H=+—H 18,634
Note: During the year ended 31st March, 2012, the entire loss Wi BE-_T——F=A=+—BLLF
for the year included in profit or loss and presented B 2FFABRRYR BT AZ
in "Net gain on financial instruments” related to the Wz FRE | 2 2 AFEEE - BmRE
conversion options embedded in convertible notes held MARBAEIIBRRERME 2 RRES
at the end of the reporting period. 7 e
32. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 2.ERFBEERS
As detailed in note 28, during the year, the Group issued SANM 28R - AN SR B B N [ B R AR R
146,666,662 shares upon the conversion of the Convertible & & ¥4 544,000,000/ 7T Al R 8 R 1% 2 7]
Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$44,000,000 MR =R E A EE1T146,666,6620% 1% 15 -
to the holders of the Convertible Notes.
As detailed in note 19, during the year, the Group SANMEEI9FTHL - REBRFARBERE S
converted ITC Properties Notes in an aggregate principal ¥ /326,500,000 7T 2 B M EZIREIR S
amount of HK$26,500,000 into 12,045,454 shares of ITC 12,045, 454R% {2 £ 3 EE AR 17 °
Properties.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. RIKE R 2
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme which NEFBAELBEREEXRECRTRIEEHE
is registered under the Occupational Retfirement Scheme Rt EEREM 2 R KETE - ZtEI 2B E
Ordinance for qualifying employees. The assets of the T AEG 2 ESBIER -
scheme is separately held in funds under the control of
frustees.
The cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions RIEFPFAZERAAER IR ZSTE 2
paid and payable to the funds by the Group at rates MAFFEZ RSN FES ZHE - HEE
specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are ERZEAANEERTFAM 2 SRR Z
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the Z:tE  NEFEEMERIEIIRSRERZ
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are S FEIR ©

reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant REH R WEREEN S ZAANE
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees BRI 2SR R ZETETES
leaving the scheme prior to their interests in the Group’s ZE AR T RG A] (AN E E R R R EE R
contributions becoming fully vested and which are DREMETRZERRWHET -

available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group also joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme NEB IS MARFEAFEESE ([RES
("MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the 2] o mFELETE D RIERHEATESET
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the ZEpEREE A ATBEEEERETL - BiES
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets HEIZEEBIYNANEB 2EE  HBYY
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the ARG 2 EESER - RigeESst2I 28
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Al BEREEHBERSABIRFRETHZ X
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its mEtEIER - NEBEMBERESTEZEAR
employees are each required to make contributions to ETABERESEIEHIEEE 2HE - B
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only B 4 B S Y Al AR E E IR B 12 &
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is (DT

to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. HRAR
On disposal of subsidiaries in previous year, the Group had RBEFELERNBARR  NEB MK
given indemnities relating to unrecorded taxation liabilities, AECHBEEE (WA REEEHER 1L
if any, and the affairs and business of the subsidiaries up to B ATRIERNRER  MBEBE HIRHER
the date of disposal to the purchasers. BRE o
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/
COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group as a lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises, which fall due as follows:

35. BXMN R AIE

(o) AEEER/EBEA :

RBEMKR  AEEETAIHEZ AR
HAYmEEEBN T ERARKRENR
BRIAASE - WL FAEZ AT

2013 2012

—E—-= —E——4F

HK$’000 HKS 000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 2,641 3,273
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFHF (HEMEBEEN) 1,570 4,233
4,211 7,506

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for an average ferm of two years (2012: two years).

(b) The Group as a lessor:
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenant for future minimum lease
payments which fall due as follows:

—RFHEBWE (ZT—ZF : WF)
ERAOREEAME -

(b) AEBEEHREHAA :

RBERR - AEBEEBEP AR K K
EMSHRIBRTH  ASHWT :

2013 2012

—E-= —EF——F

HK$°000 HKS 000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 981 971
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFHF (HEMEBEEN) 385 280
1,366 1,251

The investment property held has committed tenant for

the next two years (2012: two years).
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36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets REREEIR - REBDIEH T EE » AR
were pledged by the Group to secure banking and other BHRAREMEERE :

37.

financing facilities:

2013 2012

—EB—= —E——HF

HK$’000 HKS 000

FHET FET

Land and buildings T REF 3,323 3,374
Investment property TEYHE 21,966 22,303
25,289 25,677

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the Group's interest
in ITC Properties decreased to 32.95% at the date of these
consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issuance, which mainly included the following significant
events taken place in April 2013:

M

The Group and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (*Ms. Ng“,
spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles) converted
ITC Properties Notes with principal amounts of
HK$54.4 million and HK$297 million, respectively, into
approximately 25.9 million and 141.3 million shares
of ITC Properties at the conversion price of HK$2.102
per share (the "Conversion”). The Group's interest
in ITC Properties decreased by 6.39% as a result
of the Conversion by both the Group and Ms. Ng
concurrently. With reference to the latest published
annual results of ITC Properties for the year ended
31st March, 2013 ('ITC Properties 2013 results”), the
directors considered that a pro forma loss on the
Conversion might be resulted at approximately HK$140
million, which was determined as the aggregate of the
reduction in the share of pro forma net assets of ITC
Properties and its subsidiaries ("ITC Properties Group”)
at the date of the Conversion (which is assumed to
be similar to the carrying amount of net assets of
ITC Properties Group at 31st March, 2013) and the
carrying values of the debt portion of the ITC Properties
Notes held by the Group and the related embedded
conversion options at the date of the Conversion,
together with the related transaction cost.
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7. REHREE

R|EPRR  AEEREEHEZETZR
ZK?%QEI%%#&%Z%%PJ%*EIHHETB

3295% FERER_ZT—=FWMAEEMNU
TEAEIHA:

() AEEHAEERT((HEE]  REH
BT 2B IR EER2.1028 T
#R N & %85 Bl A54,400,000/8 7T K
297,000,000 T 2 EFEMEZE R D
Bl #725,900,000/% 52 141,300,000 4% 12 %
HERD ([EBIREF]) - ARAEE
RAZ T RFEITER  NEBEREFE
HhEE 2 HERR R ) 6.30% © B E (E M
ST EHE—S—=F=A=+—
BIFFE£E([EFEHE_S—=F
BHEE]) ESFREEREHELEHE
= 518 1% 49 A140,000,000/ 7T Jh 1R
BREREREE - B 2 B (S
EXREWBAR ([1EZ ‘%iiﬁzé'%@J)Z
HEEEFE(BRREEFHESEER
T =F=A=+— ElZéfEE,qafﬁ,ﬁE
HERT) RAEETFEFEZE
2 BEE M R EIE B BRI ik
It 2 BREMEA R B B F A 2 BN
EE-
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. REHABREIE (&)

(continued)

(i) Subsequent to the Conversion, the Group further @iy MEHEIEE - A5 B LA41,800,000/%8
acquired an aggregate of 12.7 million shares of ITC TZBRENRAHMBZE—FTEES
Properties at a total consideration of HK$41.8 million 12,700,000 EFHER D ([BE =
on the open market (the “Acquisitions”). The Group’s H]) - NIBESEIRE  AEERNEFEM
interest in ITC Properties increased by 2.21% as a result EZERENN221% - 2 EEEME —
of the Acquisitions. With reference to the ITC Properties T——FEEE EEREEEFERM
2013 results, the directors considered that a pro B4 2 HE W% 4 £24,000,000/%8 7T °
forma gain on the Acquisitions might be resulted at ZEBE 2 BEWEDIRBREEFEE
approximately HK$24 million. Such pro forma gain on REEEEAH IHANEE  BER
acquisitions was determined on the assumption that FARBEBFEER_T—=F=A=+—
the aggregate fair values of net identifiable assets, AREETESAEEMEE -

liabilities and contingent liabilities of ITC Properties
Group at the dates of the Acquisitions are not
significantly different from their carrying amounts as at
31st March, 2013.

(i) Subsequent to the Conversion, the Group also @iy REH]EIFE - N [H JFLA55,070,000
acquired ITC Properties Notes in an aggregate BT 2 KB B 87K ¢ £ §843,850,000
principal amount of HK$43.85 million at a consideration BT EFEERE - $ﬂﬁ§$ﬁﬂf
of HK$55.07 million. The directors of the Company are HZEEEE oM EEITHE -

in the process of assessing the financial impact on
such acquisition.

Up fo the date of these consolidated financial statements BEXGEUBRRERERZBEIL - A
were authorised for issuance, the financial information of REAESR ENEREENIEESERA S
ITC Properties Group at the dates of the Conversion and -ir?f?iﬂﬂgzﬁﬁf%ﬁﬂ L iR B2
the Acquisitions is not yet available and accordingly, the P EN N ESEFEENFER &
financial impact of the above transactions will be adjusted 7:565’\\5%/\$IE At ESEE 2 EE
when the financial information of ITC Properties Group is LEBALEBECEEZFHEBTUARE -

available and after completion of professional valuations on
the fair values of the assets and liabilities of ITC Properties
Group on the dates of the Acquisitions.

The pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and BEERZEHEFEPRR  WIETKAFEE
is not necessarily an indication of the gain/loss that actually FEMEGERR S Bz HEER B EEE
would have been achieved had the fair value assessment 2 BB BB EIE - IERKRKRE
been completed and the financial information on the dates BBz TEA -

of transactions been available nor is it intended to be a
projection of future gain/loss.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3BHEEAELRS

RER AEBEATEBEALTETZR

During the year, the Group had transactions with related

parties, details of which are as follows: SZEHEBEWNT
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2013 2012
BEALZER REME —E—= —E—_fF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET

Associates of the Group Rentals and related building management fee

AEE 2B E AT charged by the Group 764 2,649
AEERRES MIEAYEERE
Rentals and related building management fee

paid by the Group 2,702 1,032

FEEXNESREBNEERE
Service fees charged by the Group 359 497
REBE YIRS &

Interest income received and receivable

A director

—BEF

by the Group
2N 5 [ U B K% AR B A
Interest expenses paid and payable by the Group
in respect of the Convertible Notes
REEZRERNBBAIRERREZ FEFRX
Interest expense paid and payable by the Group
in respect of a loan from a director

11,357

128

11,197

1,138

AEEXNRENESERZMEFX

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments fo an associate of the
Group of HK$4,081,000 (2012: HK$6,593,000) under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises.

In addition, during the year ended 31st March, 2012, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in the Top Precise Group
to ITC Properties for a consideration of HK$313,000,000 plus
NTAV as detailed in note 9.

Compensation of key management personnel

Only the directors and chief executive were considered
to be the key management personnel of the Group.
The remuneration of directors and the chief executive
was disclosed in note 7. The remuneration of directors is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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R_ZE—=FZA=+—8 AEEEFRA
B BAMAYELEEL T E A ARK
{KFH £ FIE4,081,000 BT (T — —4F:
6,593,000 7T ) [A] 2N £ [ Bt i 12 A A HE o

o BE T —F A=+ —HIFE
HAR » N5 (B (W) 12 #F #f ZE HH S Top Precise®
B2 2 Iz - A8 /5313,000,000/ 7T i
B EEFE (MH sEopT ) o

EEEEE2HS
BEELRTETHRAEHRRERAERZE
BEEZEE -BEERFETHABZFHER

ME7FHRE B2 IBaFMEES
SE[BIABZRALMIZBEMEE
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ

39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 0. FAARA 2HBEHR

COMPANY
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Assets EE
Investments in subsidiaries NGRS &=} - -
Ofher receivables H i e IR 230 232
Amounts due from subsidiaries e ENGIE 1,928,201 1,968,153
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LIRS 4,762 8,785
1,933,193 1,977,170
Liabilities afE
Other payables H e BUIR 3,570 4,601
Bank overdrafts RITE X 9.918 9,947
Convertible notes payable AT AR IR e 5 SR8 95,852 131,299
109,340 145,847
1,823,853 1,831,323
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital %N 9,276 7.770
Share premium and reserves B8 175 (B I 1 1,814,577 1,823,553
Total equity (Note) wEw (i) 1,823,853 1,831,323

Note: Details of movements of the Company’s share capital, share

Wi - ARRZEAR - Bt E Rz 2B

premium and reserves are as follows: BT -
Capital ~ Convertible
Share Share  Contributed  redemption notes  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
o k3
Bx RieE EEs RO FREE Fariakl Chl
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FER FET FET FER FER
At 1st April, 2011 R=Z-——%mA-A 1,770 577,765 222,435 908 19,260 1,027,125 1,855,263
loss and fofal comprehensive ~ AEEBERZE
expenses for the year RYas - - - - - (5518) (5518)
Repurchase of convertible notes BRI AR 15 - - - - (2.005) @17) (2.882)
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - - (15,540) (15,540)
At 31t March, 2012 RZE-ZE=f=1-H 7,770 577,765 200,435 908 1705 1005190 1,831,323
Loss and totol comprehensive TEEFERZA
expenses for fhe year FxaE - - - - - (20220) (20,220)
Issue of shares B R BT
- conversion of convertiole nofes  ~ERATARER 1,467 46,278 - - (5.309) - 4,436
- scrip dividend -BRKE 39 1,17 - - - - 1,75
Transaction costs on issue ¥kt
of shares RHMA - (55) - - - - (55)
Dividend paid B8 - (1,756) - - - (29.631) (31,387)
At 31t March, 2013 RZZ-ZF=A=1-F 9276 623,949 200,435 908 11,946 955,339 1,823,853
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB wm KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZF

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. T EM B2 A EH

ARAEEHBARNR B =FR-F

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st

March, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

——F=A=t—HBZHBWMOT:

Percentage of

Place of Issued and issued share capital
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
R/ BETR HERTRE
WEQEEM it S HERE HERAEE AEEEE TEXH
2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-zf “F--F ZE-zf 3
% % % %
Directly owned
BERE
All Combine Investments Brifish Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share RERK
RERTES 1ETERR
Great Intelligence Limited Brifish Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Islands ordinary share RERK
RERTES 1ETERR
ITC Development Brifish Virgin US$15,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited Islands ordinary shares RERK
ERRAES 15,000% 7T & @R
ITC Investment Holdings Brifish Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share RERK
RERTES 1ETERR
ITC Management Group Brifish Virgin Us$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary shares RERK
RERAES BETELRR
Large Scale Investments Brifish Virgin US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share RERK
RERAES 1ETERR
Indirectly owned
FERE
Burcon Group Limited Canada CAD?1,000 100 100 100 100 Investment and
nex class A common property holding
shares RERMERE
1,000 TAREBR
Great Intelligence Holdings Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Securities frading and
Limited B ordinary shares freasury investment
2ETEBR BHEERERRE
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2013 #Z—F—=#=H=+—HI - FZ
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

40. TEMBLRAER (&)

Percentage of

Place of Issued and issued share capital
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
R,/ BETR HERTRE
WEAR AR it S HERE HARREE FEEEL TEXH
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-F -T--f ZB-Zf %=
% % % %
ITC Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of finance
BRBBERAF o ordinary shares RERE
2B BB
ITC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of
ERLEEEERAA B ordinary shares management,
AT ERR administration and

financial services and

freasury investment
REER  1THR

FBRBRERRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £ E i %

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.

Other than Burcon Group Limited which operates in
Canada, all of the above subsidiaries have their principal
place of operations in Hong Kong.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group at the end of the year. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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RAFEER - EN B AR BITEMESRE
Er

A LB AR RABR DA -

BBurcon Group Limited?E il & A AL & 4h -
FrELMBAR T BRKLEMEHER
7 o

ERINFZARRMBAR - DEERR/E
B EANREFEREIBUAEEFRE
EERFNZAE - EFRA - FHEMH
BRARSEHRBEBNITR -




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B %R E
RESULTS
Year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=+t—HLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENF T FTF _E——F —T-—_F ZEB-Z=ZF
HK$*000 HK$*000 HKS* 000 HKS*000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHETT FHETT FHET FET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&&:351)) (E751) (=&:751) (=&E751)
Revenue WA 46,453 59,014 36,102 19,548 17,798
Profit (loss) before taxation B FiBlE 7 (&18) (718,120) (1,192)  (585,925) 434,334 214,136
Taxation A - (639) 74) = )
Profit (loss) for the year VAN/NEIE 2SN
attributable to owners FEAL 2N F 2 0% T
of the Company (E18) (718,120) (1.831)  (585,999) 434,334 214,128

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE
As at 31st March,
R=A=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE _E-TF —T——F _ET-—_F ZB-Z=F
HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T TFHET FHET FET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&) (BES) (BES) (BE5)
Total assets BEHAE 3,036,088 3,368,266 2,483,505 2,793,883 3,013,732
Total liabilities BER%E (322,828) (313,889) (345,847) (180,623) (159.340)
Shareholders’ funds RARHERA
attributable to owners ELHREES
of the Company 2,713,260 3,054,377 2,137,658 2,613,260 2,854,392
Note: Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the change in HteF - LEERE FRAZ - LARBARS M ®ER M2
accounting policy on deferred tax as stated in note 2 of the Frit B BIEE R TH 2 25T HUR 2 #8) -

consolidated financial statements.
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